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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Kankakee County, Illinois, as of and for the year ended 
November 30, 2005, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on 
these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Kankakee County Public 
Building Commission, which represents 100 percent of the assets and revenues of the component unit column. Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose repmt thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar 
as it relates to the amounts included for the Kankakee County Public Building Commission, is based on the repmt of the 
other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
suppmting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of Kankakee County, 
Illinois, as of November 30, 2005, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, 
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance witlr Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated May 16, 2006 on our consideration 
of Kankakee County, Illinois's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to 
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial repmting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standard' and should be considered in conjunction with this 
report in considering the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and the accompanying required supplementary information on pages 4 
through J 8 and 44 through 56, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary 
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied 
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and 
express no opinion on it. 
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Kankakee County, Illinois's basic financial statements. The other supplementary information is presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The other supplementary information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

May 16,2006 
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We have audited the financial statements of the govemmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Kankakee County, Illinois as of and for the year ended November 30, 
2005, which collectively comprise Kankakee County, Illinois's basic financial statements and have issued our report 
thereon dated May 16, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In plmming and performing our audit, we considered Kankakee County, Illinois's internal control over financial 
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial repmiing. Our consideration of the 
intemal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the illternal control that might be 
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of 
the internal contTOI components does not reduce to a relatively low' level the risk that misstatements caused by error or 
fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be 
detected within a timely period by employees in the nonnal course ofperfonning their assigned functions. We noted no 
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Kankakee County, Illinois's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement) we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of Kankakee County, Illinois, in a separate letter dated May 
16, 2006. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the 
organization, Kankakee County Board, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to 
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~~ ~tJU~--t1/ A. 
May 16, 2006 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The management of the County of Kankakee presents readers of the County's financial statement this narrative 
overview and analysis offhc financial activities for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2005 and 2004. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the new reporting model adopted by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements ·· and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis- for State and Local Governments issued June 1999. This analysis will 
include comparative information to last year's financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets of the County of Kankakee exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 
$68.98 million (net assets). Net assets invested in capital assets (net of depreciation and related debt) account 
for over 56 percent of this amount ($38.9 million) Of the total, $7.8 million (unrestricted net assets) may be 
used to meet the governmenCs ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

• The govemment's total net assets increased by $26.3 million (62 percent). The govemmental net assets 
increased by $26.4 million (69 percent) while the business-type net assets decreased by $0.04 million (0.8 
percent). These changes are after a one time special item revenue increase of $24.7 million described in more 
detail later in tl1is discussion and in Notes 8 and 15 to the financial statements. 

• At the close of fiscal year 2005, the County of Kankakee's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $38.3 million. The majority of this amount, $24.9 million is available for spending at the 
government's discretion (unresen,edfund balance). 

• At the end of the cmTent fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $3.6 million, or 14.33 
percent of total general fund expenditures. 

• The County's financial status continues to be strong. Total net assets increased more than 62 percent over the 
course of the year. 

• Overall revenues were $46.2 million, and proceeds fi'01n long-term debt were 17.2 million, resulting in a $5.9 
million increase in fund balance for govemmental funds. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of three parts - m anagement's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, and required supplementary information. This discussion and analysis are intended to 
serve as an introduction to the County of Kankakee's basic financial statements. The basic financial statements 
comprise two types of statements that present different views of the County: 

• The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short­
term infonnation about tl1e County's overall financial status. 

• The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the County 
government, reporting the County's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
• The governmental funds statements tell how general govenunent services such as public safety were 

financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 
• J>roprietary fund statements offer short- and long-tenn financial information about the activities that the 

government operates like a business, such as the Emergency Telephone System (9 I I). 
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• Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships, like the drainage district 
funds, in which the County acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others, to whom the 
resources in question belong. 

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the infOrmation in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that 
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 

Illustration A shows how the requisite parts of this annual report arc arranged and related to one another. 

Illustration A 
Organization oft he County of Kankakee's Annual Financial Report 

Management's 
Di&~)lssion 

Aild 
Analysis 

Government­
Wide 

Financial 
Statements 

Summary 

Basic 
Financial 

Statements 

Fund 
Financial 

Statements 

Required 
Supplementary 

Information 

Notes to the 
Financial 

Statements 

~--------------------------~ 
Detail 

Illustration B summarizes the major features of the County's financial statements, including the portion oftlJC 
County government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of 
management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements. 
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Illustration B 
Major Features of Kan){akcc Count)''s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

T)•pc of assctlliab_i_lity 
inforriu~tion 

Goycrnmcnt-widc 
Statements 

ass·ets 
Statement of 
activities 

All {issets and 
liabilities, PO'tll 
finimcialand capital, 
at1d'·Sh6rt·tcml and 
IOng~tcrin 

Government~ wide Statements 

Go\'crnmcnhlll?uuds 

Statcnicnt of 
revenues, 
cxpcndihlrcs, and 
changes in fund 
balances 

Only asSets expected to 
be. us~d ·~,~p and 
liabilities-that come due 
during th,c year or soon 
thereafter 

Propric.tary l<'unds 

assets 
Statement of 
revenues, 
expenses, and 
changes in net 
assets 
StatCmcnt of.ctJ.sh 
flows 

All assets and 
tiabili~ics, both 
firlancial and capital, 
and ·short-term and 
long~tetnl 

!fiduciary Funds 

chruiges in 
fiduciary net 
assets 

All a'sseL" and 
liabilities, :both short~ 
tehn and:lonlHenn 

The govemment-wide statements report information about the County as a whole using accounting methods similar 
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes ail of the County's assets and 
liabilities. The difference between the two is net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as 
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating. The statement of 
activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. 
All of the CUITent year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 

The two government-wide statements report the County's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets, the 
difference between the County's assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the County's financial health. Both 
of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are principally supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all 
or a significant poriion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). 
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The govcrnment~wide financial statements of the County arc divided into three categories: 

l. Governmental activities·" Most of the County's basic services are included here, such as the Sheriffs 
Department, State's Attorney Office, Highway Department, Health Department, and General Administration. 
Prope11y taxes and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. 

2. Business-type activities -·· The County charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of ce11ain services it 
provides. The County's Emergency Telephone (911) System and Animal Control are included here. 

3. Component units- The County includes another entity, the Kankakee County Public Building Commission, in 
its report. Although legally separate, this component unit is important because the County is financially 
accountable for it. The Public Building Commission is a discretely-presented component unit of the County of 
Kankakee. The Commission issues separate financial statements which are on file at the Office of Finance 
Director, Kankakee County, 189 E. Court St., Suite 300, Karrkakee, lllinois 60901. 

Additionally, the Kankakee County Health Department, the Veterans Assistance Commission, and the 
Kankakee County Emergency Telephone System Board are blended component units of the County of 
Kankakee. These entities financial statements are blended with those of the County due to a degree of control 
that the County has over these functions. However, both the Health Department and the Emergency Telephone 
System Board have issued separate financial statements which are also on file at the County. 

The govenunent-wide financial statements can be found on pages 19-20 of this rep01t. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Kankakee County's fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County's most significant 
funds, as opposed to the County as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the County uses to keep track of 
specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by State law and by bond 
covenants. The County Board establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to 
show that it is properly using certain taxes and grarrts. 

The County has three categories of funds: 

1. Governmental funds: Most of the County's basic services are included in govemmental funds, which focus on 
both how cash and other tinancial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out, and the balances 
left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a 
detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
be spent in the near future to finance the County's programs. Because this information does not encompass the 
additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, additional infonnation at the bottom of the 
governmental funds statement explains the relationship, or differences, between them. 

Kankakee County maintains thiity-one individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in 
the govemmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund, the tort fund, and the pension fund. These three funds are 
considered to be major funds. Data fi·om the other twenty-eight govemmental funds ar·e combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in 
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

Kankakee County adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This schedule is 
found in the Required Supplementary Information section. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 21-23 of this report. 

2. Proprietary funds: Services for which the County charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary 
funds. Proprietary funds, like the govemment-wide statements, provide both long- and short-term financial 
information. In fact, the County's enterprise funds (one type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business­
type activities, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows. Kankakee County uses 
enterprise funds to account for its Emergency Telephone Services (911) system and f(H· its Animal Control 
operation. 

The basic proprietary ftmd financial statements can be found on pages 24-26 of this report. 
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3. Fiduciary funds: The County is a trustee, or fiduciary for other assets that, because of (I trust arrangement, can 
be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The County is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these 
funds arc used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the County's 
fiducial)' activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net assets and a statement of changes in 
fiducial)' net assets. Kankakee County excludes these activities from the county's govenunent-widc financial 

. statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. 

TI1e basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 27-28 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund fmancial statements. 

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 29-42 of this report. 

Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary infonnation concerning the County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to 
its employees. 

Required supplementary infonnation can be found on page 44-56 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major govenunental funds are presented 
immediately following the required supplementary inforn1ation. Combining and individual fund statements and 
schedules can be found on pages 59-69 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE l<'INANCIAL ANALYSIS 

This is the third year that the County has presented its financial statement> under the new reporting model required 
by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic Financial Statements- and 
Management's Discussion and Analysis -for Stale and Local Governments. The new reporting model significantly 
changes the recording and presentation of financial data and comparative data is provided. 

Exhibit I is a condensed version of the statement of net assets for the County of Kankakee. At the close of the 
current fiscal year the County's net assets exceeded liabilities by $68.9 million. Net assets for govennnental 
activities increased $26.4 million from FY 2004. However, for business-type activities, net assets decreased by 
$0.04 million. 

8 



Exhibit 1 
Condensed Statement of Net Assets (In Thousands) 

icuJrent and o.iher assets 
icaritai;,5S;i8 ··· 

I Total assets 

I. 
I (;urrCilt_a_n~ other liabilities 
I Long-term debt 

j'fotalliabilitics r ········ 
/:N~i ;;;seisil1v~sied i;; capital 
I assets, net of related debt 
j"''' '•~"-'"•-~n·•~~""•~-~'"'''"'' '''• • 

l Restricted 
i·u;;;~;t;iciect······· 
r"-"' ------------------.,.- -~ 

lTotal net assets 
, .. -~------·-···· ·---------··-·-~--- ---

i Governmental Activities i Business-Type Activities: 
2005 i : 2004 

Tot I 
2005 2004 2005 2004 

$ 56,977 . 
___2:>,7 3 9 I 

112,717 

20,494 
... 27,726 

48,220, 

I $ 48,205 I$ 3,477 : i $ 3,335 : . [$ 60,455 $ 5(540 
11,sn: i 3)67! r :{4i'Jl 59,707. 22,2n 

·-6 ... 6 .. ,·.a.-·78"'.:.··- "'l 7---"445"-i ·t-· · -7--7~5~r 1,,·· 1 --iiO-"f62"_\_ 73832 

l6,446l l 1

387 i J ,4611 ~ . 20:881, , 16:908 

~~~~~,5.cclc.,.9. ! . i 2,578 i 2, 776! . i 30,:364 .. ! ~4,295 
.27,966: 2,9651 I 3,237.1 T 51,185 31,203 j ...... i l . I 

: I . ·I· J . ; I 
i 1 I l 37,750\ 11,533: } 1,191[ I..... 1,415\ . 38,241 12,~~2 

, 21,9S?I 
1 

22,922.1 
1 

--233: r 2021 i 22,2151 23,].2.4 

~~*+ 1 ~?it_,$ · r~~~Er~~ntil J$ 6~~!~~. J$ 4~:~~: 
A significant p011ion of the County's net assets (56.5 percent) reflect~ investment of $38.9 million in capital assets 
such as land, buildings, and equipment, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County 

· uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, tl1e resources needed 
to repay the debt must be provided fi·om otl1er sources, as capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the County's net assets $22.2 million (32.2 percent), represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. Of this amount, $0.04 million of govenm1ental activities and all of 
the business-type activities restricted net assets are restricted for debt service. The remainder is restricted for other 
purposes. 

The remaining portion of the County's net assets (1!.3 percent) is located in unrestricted net assets. Kankakee 
County's unrestricted net assets of $7.8 million may be used to meet the County's ongoing obligations to citizens 
and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County of Kankakee is able to repot1 positive balances in all three 
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business­
type activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year. 

The following table, Exhibit 2, illustrates changes in net assets resulting from changes in revenues and expenditures. 
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Exhibit 2 
Kankakee County's Changes in Net Assets (In Thousands) 

' Govenunental 

i Revenues 
iPrggram Rey~nues 

Cll_a_r:g_~~--fl?.!~---~-~T.",i_~?~---­
I 

:$ 
Operating (}rants a11ci C_()ntributions 
Capital Grants and Contributions -~ 

Activities 
2005 2004 

7,744 1 
5,709 i 

5o6 i 

Business-Type 
Activities 

2005 I 2004 

! $ 2,670 ' 

Total 
2005 2004 

I $ 12,579 
j. 

! 8,l32 
943 i : ' . 

$ 10,231 
5,736 I 

506 i 
'''"i 

t a·~tlei:a'f ~~~~-~~es· - i 

1
Property'faxes I 11,847; ' ll,582 I 1!,847 ) l. 11;582] 

Sales Tax ~. 8,664j 7,471
1 

8,664 j j 71471 1 

State Income Tax 2,269 1 r 1 1943 L 2,269 ; l,_9~3J 
Replacement and Other Taxes 2,942 I 2

1
480 I i,942T 2,480 i 

Other i 1,587 I l ,289 i 61 1 15: . i,648 I 1,3_ii3 ' 
i1'so-ptaeic

1
R'alcvlteelllllliSes r 27'

4
,:,,_of

1
1···o
7.: ·. !' · __ • __ ·_3·.·.8···.-·7··-·2·-··41 I 2,_73_1 I I J 24 iJ? [ i __ - i 

i : --------·-·-------I'''! -- ,.,,,,.,_,,,,,,,,,1' I . I . 2,529J ······ :i~.ELJ r· ~c~~}! 
1 ...... ~--·--·-··· --- ''- .. "''"'"t! ··--!· ! I . .. ····---,L .... J. ) .. j ·····-·~---,: " -- . . _. __ -~-- r 

r
ld;~:-~j;~~~~aiJ\ctivities l [ r t T J I i i : -l 

(}£I_Ieral G_~<omment J 7;77ii ! .I :_z,522f . , . . :,1 t J J
1

1 
.

1 
.. 47.,74.1121·.·-•]lt:,)1:.,.52)3···~7 j ~~~~~~~~;es ... j-!J:mt -·· ,,,2_37l L---· . i ·r ----l ~-------:+- ------~ 

Transnortation 1
1 6 543 l , ..• k~ri~_-__ ·_·_,,1_·· .. · __ : .. 

1 j . ····_·_-,J 1 N1~ J ···! ~~6~ i 

/"il_ealtha.;d Sanitation r j:nrt-l 3,ooi ! i ..... LJ . I F'j~Hrr =T~¥r; 

[

' ~:~~;::;,~cA~~~f~~-Ptr;~t!~:· · ········ .. ··_,1,.'.·· · · •. 2 ___ -_._-_
9
8 __ -__ ._4_-

1 
____ 2_--,._-_.j: ___ ·· ;,;_-_f.~. '1[ 1 I T 2 8421 'T17411 

_lnteres! and fiscal charge~.. _ · .. ·· · 491 l 1 ' · J '<ii]·l--1 - '49·1 

Bu~iness-l)pe ~ct:vities , _ ······l j ! . . [ ... j t L ~ i~iiLE-~-i~:8iJ [}li;~i~~~~;tJ'l()ne sery•ces J .. i J _ _ _j .. _.; 2,m ! J ~~;~~~ !- --~231 !- __ 2~8 ! 
l!otaiExpens=s········· .. ··················. -i ~4,63If .38,359[ 2;76·8: ; M5~~ i =4~~398JJ:=l,=III 
if~~:;e;~eficiency) Before Transfers 1 26,]80_! 1 365 ,

1

: __ i ....... (37)J 
1 

JI?3)1-+ ?6,343 ________ i,~-_-····,1_· }~2l_: 
' ! i ~ :-.-.-, .--:-- . , J I ~ 
iillc~ease(Dccreasej i;;Net Assets ..... i 26,380 I ~ •••...... 365[ I ..... (:l'i)!' ·: ... (ii3)1 r 26,343 I I 242 i 
iN~iAsseis~Begi~.;i;;g;;(vear \ 38,li7T : 37,752 1 4,5i6T 4,646 I i ·4i,'634J

1 
42,392 1 

fNet Assets- Et!d of Year ........ I $64,4 97[ I f 38, i 17 T ···! $ 4,479 ! [ $ 4,516·! · t$ 68,976 j ·· 1 $ 42,634 i 

• Charges for service for govemmental activities increased by $2.2 million (30.0 percent). The majority of 
this increase is due to an increase in charges for service for public safety of $1.85 million. The revenues 
received are a result of the federal inmate housing contract 

• Operating grants for governmental activities increased by $2.4 million ( 42 percent) during the year, mostly 
a result of the County acting as fiscal agent for the Local Workforce Investment Area ll for tl1e entire 
fiscal year. 

• Capital grants for governmental activities increased by $0.4 million (86 percent) during the year. This is 
partially the result of a nearly $0.4 million increase to transportation capital grants for the highway 
depmtment. 

• Sales tax revenue jumped by $1.2 million (16.0 percent) from last fiscal year. This is due to the continued 
success of the tax rebate program implemented in the City of Kankakee to draw more businesses to the 
area. Sales tax had also increased by $1.26 million in the prior fiscal year, giving the County a 39.5 percent 
increase over the two year period. 
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• The Special Item of $24.7 million is a result of a lease with the Kankakee County Public Building 
Commission for detention facilities which is the fair market value at the date of the lease. This is described 
in more detail in Note 8 to the Basic Financial Statements. 

• Public safety expenditures increased by $3.2 million. Due to a new contract with the Federal Marshall 
Service, the County housed approximately 170 new inmates, which lead to increased costs to run both jails. 
The County maintains a federal inmate housing contract with the federal government to offset these 
expenditures. 

• Economic development is a category of expense under governmental activities, and is a result of the 
services provided by the Workforce Investment Act of which the County is now the grantee. Expenditures 
in this area increased by $1.7 million. In FY04, the County was only the grantee for five months. The 
increase reflects running the program for a full year. 

Governmental Activities 

Expenses and Program Revenues- Governmental Activities 

16,000 
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12,000 

10,000 

8,000 
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4,000 
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Gove1nment 
Court Services l'u~lic Safety Veterans Transportation 

Administration 

Health and 
Sanitation 

Economic Interest a11d fiscal 
Development charges 

·········----- ······-··---- ·--
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Rcvc nuc s by Source - Govc nunc ntal Activities 

Special Item 
36% 

Capital Grants 
I% 

Operating Grants and 
Contributions 

II% 

Property Taxes 
17% 

Sales Taxes 
12% 

State Income Tax 
3% 

Replacement and Other 
Taxes 

4% 

Charges for &rviccs 
14% 

Governmental activities increased the County's net assets by $26.4 million, accounting for all of the growth in the 
assets of the County. The majority of this amount, $24.7 million, was due to a one time special item of recognizing 
the fair market value of the detention center. Another key aspect of this growth was a large increase in sales tax 
revenue during the year. 

The preceding charts illustrate the County's govenunental expenses and revenues by function and its revenue by 
source. Public safety is the largest governmental expense of the County, followed by court services, general 
government, and transpmiation. General revenues such as the property, sales, state income, replacement, motor 
fuel, and other taxes are not shown by function because they are used to support County-wide program activities. 
Less than one-fifth of the County's revenue for governmental funds comes from property taxes, and 36 cents of 
every dollar raised comes from some type of tax, down from 60 cents a year ago and 63 cents two years ago. More 
realistically and comparable to prior and ft1ture years, if the special item is removed, since it is a one-time 
occurrence, property taxes account for just over one-qumter of the County's revenue for governmental funds, and 56 
cents of every dollar raised comes fi·om some type of tax, still a decrease from prior years. 
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Business-Type Activities 
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Revenues by Source- Business-Type Activities 
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Other 
2% 
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Business-type activities decreased the County's net assets by $0.04 million to $4.48 million, a decline of0.8 percent. 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FlJNDS 

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the County's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of resources available for spending. This information is useful in assessing the County's financing 
requirements. fn particular, unreserved fund balance measures the County's net resources available for spending at 
the end of the fiscal year. Governmental funds reported by the County include the General Fund, special revenue 
funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, and permanent funds. 

At the end of the current fiscal year the County's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$38.3 million. Approximately $25.0 million (65.2 percent) of that amount constitutes unreserved fund balance, 
which is available for discretionary spending. Another $1.3 million is unreserved but designated for capital projects. 
The remainder of the fund balance, $12.0 million, is reserved; it is committed for various purposes and is not 
available for new spending. The majority of the reserved amount is due to $11.2 million reserved in the capital 
projects fund. 

Revenues for the governmental funds in 2005 totaled $46.2 million. Expenditures were $57.6 million. Other 
financing sources/uses contributed an additional $17.2 million. Overall, the f\md balance increased by $5.9 million 
for the year. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. It is composed of 34 departments: Administration, 
Liquor Commission, Treasurer, County Clerk, Elections, Recorder, Assessments, Board of Reviews, Planning, 
Jnfonnation Services, Building & Grounds, Health Insurance, Contingency, Auditor, Zoning Board of Appeals, 1-
KAN ROE Educational Agreement, Finance, Capital Development, Circuit Clerk, Maintenance & Child Support, 
Circuit Court, Jury Commission, State's Attomey Office, Public Defender, Probation, D.N.D.C., Relief, Sheriff 
Police, Corrections, Auxiliary Police, E.S.D.A., Merit Commission, Dispatch Center, and Coroner. 

At the end of 2005 the total fund balance of the General Fund was $5.1 million. The fund balance increased by 
$941,121 in 2005. The unreserved and undesignated fund balance oftl1e general fund was $3.6 million. 

The Tort Liability Fund, a special revenue fund and one of the major funds of the County, ended the year with a 
fund balance of$2.5 million, which represents a decrease of$0.14 million fi·om the prior fiscal year. 

The Pension Fund, a special revenue fund, is another major fund of the County. Fund balance at the end of2005 
was $4.2 million, a decrease of$0.46 million. 

There was a fourth major fund for Kankakee County, the Capital Projects Fund. It closed fiscal year 2005 with an 
$11.2 million fund balance, an increase of$5.4 million. 

Proprietary Funds 

The County's proprietmy funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements but in more detail. 

911 System Fee Fund. This f1md also qualified as a major fund of Kankakee County. Net assets at the end of the 
year amounted to $4.2 million. Of this amount, $1.2 million is invested in capital assets, net of related debt and $0.2 
million is restricted for debt service. The remainder, $2.8 million, is unrestricted. Total net assets decreased by 
$72,144 during the year. 

Animal Control. There was a net asset balance of $237,215 at the end of the fiscal year. This represented an 
increase of $35,120. Of the total, $35,610 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt and the remainder of 
$20 I ,605 is umestricted. 
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Fiduciary Funds 

The County maintains fiduciary funds for the assets of others in various Private Purpose Trust Funds and Agency 
Funds. Total net assets in the Fiduciary funds are $1.34 million, a decrease of$0.05 million f!·om lnst year. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

During the year, the County Board revised the County budget due to emergency issues. Generally, the budget 
amendments during the year were due to grants and higher than anticipated revenues from the sales tax agreement 
and federal inmate housing. Changes were also made at the end of the year to account for unexpected revenues and 
expenditures. The original General Fund budget of$23.98million increased to $25.73 million. 

The budget for the General Fund increased revenues $1.46 million during the year. The most significant increase, 
$0.7 million, was due to higher than anticipated sales tax revenue. Amendments caused by higher than expected 
federal inmate housing agreement revenues during fiscal year 2005totalcd $0.5 million. 

The most significant budget increases on the expenditure side were $0.55 million amendment for Capital 
Development. The County was able to pay down some of its debt service from the increased revenues from the 
federal inmate housing agreement. Another significant increase of $0.2 million was the result of an increase in 
insurances. Other increased expenditures included a $0.16 million increase for contractual services in the Planning 
Department as the Board voted for the General Fund to take over expenses that were fom1erly charged to the 
Tipping Fee Fund. An additional increase of $0.25 million to the Probation Department in the General Fund was 
due a decrease in funding for the Juvenile Detention Center by the State. The County is contractually obligated to 
pay for 25 percent of the expenditures at this facility. 

CAPITAL ASSETS & DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The County of Kankakee's investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as of 
November 30, 2005, amounts to $59.7 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes the transportation network, land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, buildings and 
improvements under capital lease agreements, leasehold improvements, equipment, equipment under capital lease 
agreements, and vehicles. The total increase in the County's investment in capital assets for the cu!l'ent fiscal year 
was 168 percent (a 212 percent increase for governmental activities and an 11.4 percent decrease for business-type 
activities). 

The following schedule shows the County's investment in capital assets. 
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Exhibit 3 
Capital Assets at Year End, Net of Depreciation (In Thousands) 

tTranspoiiation Network 

!~nd 
L<2?.r_l_~-~~Ll_C.tion in fl~'<~!p·ess 
1.~-~}-~9--~~s __ ~!ld I_t~_r?yetnei_~ts 
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jcapitalleas~ agreements 

Governmental 
Activities 

2005 2004 
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13,145 
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l $ 3,967 i $17,872 • $55,739 

Major capital asset changes that occurred during 2005 include the following: 

'. 
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' . 354: 

. . - -. I 

13,145J i 
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4,154] 
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i 
5,865[ 
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i 1,359 i 
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' 

$ 7,384 
141 
171 

3,437 

4,314 
197 

5,352 

33 
1,262 

·t·-- i• 
! $59,707 ! I $22,292 

The new detention center will become the property of the County at the end of the County's lease term with the 
Public Building Commission, and accordingly $24.6 million was added to the County's capital assets. Additionally, 
$13.0 million was added to construction in progress for work being done on the second phase of the detention 
center. 

The sheriff's department purchased new squad cars during the year to replace retired vehicles 

More detail about the County's capital assets is presented in Note 6 to the financial statements. 

Long-term Debt 

At the end oftl1e cmrent fiscal year, the County of Kankakee had total bonded debt outstanding of$31.5 million. 
This encompasses $28.7 million outstanding long-term debt in govemmental activities and $2.8 million outstanding 
long-term debt in business-type activities. This represents an increase of approximately$ 16.3 million (1 3 I percent) 
in govemmental activities and a decrease of approximately $0.2 million (7.6 percent) in business-type activities. 

The following schedule shows the County's investment in long-term debt. 

Exhibit 4 
Outstanding Long-term Debt at Year End (In Thousands) 

Govc.J·nmcntal Busincss~Ty[~ 

Ac.tivities Activities Total 
2005 ' 2004 2005 2004 2005 ' 2004 ' 

' IDebt Ce1tificates . • $22,305 $ 5,750 $ $ ,$22,3Q5 ' $ 5,750 ' 
(_Loan I Lease Agreement 867 1,071 867 1,071 
1 C.apital_Leas es 5,125 5,249; 26 34 5,151 5,283 
I . . . . 

'1 J Bonds -Alternate Revenue Source 2,750 2,970 2,750 2,970 
!Other Commitments 

t 
: $15,074 !Total $28,297 ; $12,070 $ 2,776 $ 3,004 $31,073 

16 



The major addition to long-term debt during the year for governmental activities was a $17.0 million bond issue for 
the addition on the new detention center. However, the County had payments of $0.84 million on debt and lease 
agreements. 

There were no additions to long-term debt for business-type activities. Alternatively, the County retired $220,000 
in bonds and paid $7,941 on the lease of the Animal Control truck. 

More detailed information about the County's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

The County's General Fund budget for 2006 increased only 8.4 percent to approximately $27.9 million. A large part 
of the increase on the revenue side is due to expected $0.58 million increase in sales tax revenue. The other 
substantial revenue increase is $2.7 million increase in inmate housing fees. There is an expenditure increase of 
about $0.4 million for the increase in the County's portion of health insurance. A latge increase is in Capital 
Development as the County pays down the debt from the detention facility utilizing revenues from the inmate 
housing contract. There is also an increase in personnel expenditures in the Corrections Department budgeted for 
fiscal year 2006 due to the anticipated opening of the addition to the detention center, which is also offset by 
revenues from the inmate housing contract. 

On July I, 2004, Kankakee County became fiscal agent for the Workforce Investment Act Grant. Our local 
workforce area consists of Grundy, Livingston, and Kankakee County. Fiscal year 2005 was the first full year as 
grantee. For the period of July I thru November 30, 2004 the County expended $1.14 million in Workforce 
Investment Act Funds. This amount increased to $2.8 million in FY 2005 as we completed a full year of grant 
services. 

The following are other factors that could play a role in the actual outcome of next year's budgeted figures: 

The Chicago Bears have renewed their contract for summer training camp with Olivet Nazarene University in 
Bourbonnais. This event has increased tourist travel into the County in late July and early August, whichcan lead to 
an increase in sales tax revenue. 

Splash Valley Aquatic Park opened in June 2004. The water park, which is part of the Kankakee Valley Park 
District and can accommodate up to l ,500 people, also has the potential to attract tourist travel into the County. It 
will be open June through September and features discounted rates for residents. Attendance and revenue has 
increased each year the park has been open. 

Oak 01thopedics Sp01is Arena opened in fall 2005 near the water park. The project was funded through a $6.6 
million state grant. KCC is paying a portion of the costs that are related to the fitness center it is using. The 49,000-
square-foot building is located on the southeast corner of Kankakee Community College's campus adjacent to the 
soccer and softball fields. The facility includes the 85-foot-by-200-foot ice rink, a fitness center and locker rooms. 
The fitness center will be 8,000 square feet and will be operated by KCC. This represents an attraction to the area 
which is open year round. 

The Kankakee County Board voted against a landfill in Kankakee County. Waste Management is CUITently 
appealing this vote. Revenue from Waste Management that we have been receiving for the siting process will not be 
in the budget in future years; related expenses will also be absent from the budget. 

The planning department of Kankakee County recently completed step I of a 3-step process to detennine the 
feasibility for the extension of metra commuter rail service from University Park to Kankakee. Other communities 
in Kankakee and Will County are helping to fund the local portion of the grant contract. While the study is a 
lengthy process, it could lead to possible future growth for our County. 

In recent years, there has been a genera!Iy continued increase in sales tax revenue due to increased spending in the 
area and the contracts the city has entered into to bring in more sales tax revenue. This is expected to continue 
increasing in future years. 
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A new hotel and conference center, Hilton Garden Inn and Convention Center, opened in November 2004 at exit 
308 in southern Kankakee County. This has the potential to attract others from outside the area for the use of its 
convention center. A large Gas City which houses Dunkin' Donuts, Subway Sandwich shop, and Great American 
Hot Dog & Pizza eatery was buill in the vicinity. 

Wai-Mart has announced its intentions to build superstores both in southem Kankakee County ncar exit 308 and in 
northern Kankakee County along Route 50. Ground has also broken on Kohl's in nmthern Kankakee County along 
Route 50. 

The County completed construction of the new jail in early 2005. The new jail is located along Interstate 57 in 
southern Kankakee County. This will allow the existing jail to be rented out for out of county inmate housing as a 
revenue source. Additional, new correctional officers have been hired in order to operate both the new facility and 
also continue operating the etm·ent facility. Work is currently being done on phase two of tl1e new jail which will 
allow further out of cow1ty inmate housing. 

Outside consultants completed a space needs study for the County offices. While it is evident that additional space 
is warranted, it is yet to be determined what course of action the County will pursue. 

The Board is considering repairing or replacing the fire escape of the county administration building as the existing 
one has been deemed unsafe. This project is expected to cost around $160,000. 

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the County's finances and to demonstrate the County's accountability for tl1e money it receives. 
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Kankakee County 
Finance Department, 189 E. Court St. Suite 300, Kankakee, IL 60901. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 

Statement of Net Assets 
November 30, 2005 

Assets 

Cash 

Cash - restricted 
Investments, at cost 

Receivables, (net, where applicable 
of allowance for uncollectibles): 

Taxes, including interest, penalties and liens 

Accounts 

Loans 

Internal balances 

Due from other governments 

Prepaid expenses 
Inventory, at cost 

Other assets 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities 

Vouchers and accounts payable 
Payable from restricted assets 

Accrued wages and benefits 

Deferred revenue 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 

Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 

Restricted for: 

Debt service 

Other purposes 

Unrestricted 
Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

Governmental 

Activities 

$ 20,382,825 

15,662,469 

13,139,687 

6,350,131 

(223) 

275,073 
686,347 

187,053 
294,073 

55,739,421 
$ 112,716,856 

$ 5,864,024 

510,323 
12,966,563 

!, 153,559 
27,725,685 

48,220,154 

37,749,807 

40,434 

21,941,112 

4,765,349 

64,496,702 
$ 1!2,7!6,856 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

Primary Govcmment 
Business~ Type Component 

Activities Total Unit 

$ 1,476,418 $ 21,859,243 $ 353,235 
287,100 287,100 

1,161,856 16,824,325 

13,139,687 

336,193 6,686,324 

2,291,556 

223 
275,073 

184,!50 870,497 

187,053 

31,492 325,565 

3,967,278 59,706,699 
$ 7,444,7!0 $ 120,161,566 $ 2,644,791 

$ 50,571 $ 5,9!4,595 $ 68,159 

53,704 53,704 

54,227 564,550 

12,966,563 15,755 

228,280 I ,381,839 65,000 

2,578,460 30,304,145 2,3!0,000 

2,965,242 51,185,396 2,458,9!4 

1,191,368 38,941,175 

233,396 273,830 

21,941,!!2 

3,054,704 7,820,053 185,877 

4,479,468 68,976,170 185,877 
$ 7,444,7!0 $ 120,!61,566 $ 2,644,791 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

Functions/Programs: 
Primary government 

Governmental activities 

General government 
Court services 
Public safety 
Health and sanitation 
Transportation 
Veterans administration 
Economic development 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 

911 Emergency services 
Animal control 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Component unit 

r1 
/" . •.. 

Kankakee County Public Building Commission 

E~enses 

$ 7,769,963 
8,741,838 

14,410,721 
3,155,754 
6,542,730 

255,903 
2,842,492 

911,455 

44,630,856 

2,494,583 
273,020 

2,767,603 

$ 47,398,459 

$ 130,380 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

-- ··- ---
Prog:am Revenues 

Charges for Operating Grants Capital 
Services and Contributions Grants 

$ 3,380,390 $ 388,925 $ 
2,717,952 1,433,728 
2,768,787 1,016,035 315,587 

429,266 2,292,578 
612,556 160,625 627,379 

2,840,067 

9,908,951 8,131,958 942,966 

2,365,949 
303,774 

2,669,723 

$ 12,578,674 $ 8,131,958 $ 942,966_ 

$ 144,522 $ $ 4,096,600 

General revenues: 
Taxes 

Property taxes 
Sales tax 
State income tax 
Replacement and other taxes 

Interest 
Miscellaneous 

Special items- Notes 8 and 15 
Total general revenues and special items, 

Change in net assets 
Net assets- beginning 
Net assets -ending 

Net (Exrensel Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 
Prim~ Government 

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Component 
Activitie~ Activities Government Unit 

$ (4,000,648) $ (4,000,648) 
(4,590,158) (4,590,158) 

(10,310,312) (10,310,312) 
(433,9i0) (433,910) 

(5,142,170) (5,142,170) 
(255,903) (255,903) 

(2,425) (2,425) 
(911,455) (911,455) 

(25,646,981) (25 ,646,981) 

$ (128,634) (128,634) 

30,754 30,754 
(97,880) (97,880) 

(25,646,981) (97,880) (25,744,861) 

$ 4,110,742 

11,846,825 11,846,825 
8,664,241 8,664,241 
2,269,476 2,269,476 

2,941,931 2,941,931 

693,559 60,856 754,415 ll.!46 

893,597 893,597 120,937 

24,716,912 24,716,912 04,716.912) 
52,026,541 60,856 52.087397 (24,584,829) 

26,379,560 (37,024) 26,342,536 (20474,087) 

38,117.142 4,516.492 42,633.634 20.(i59,964 

$ 64,496,702 $ 4,479,468 s 68,976,170 s 185,877 



Kankttk(.•e County, lllinois 

Balance Sheet 
Gonmmental Funds 
No\•cmbcr 30, 2005 

Other Total 

General Tort Capital Governmental Govenuncntal 
Fund Liability Pension Projects Funds Funds 

Assets 
Cash $ I ,260,382 $ 917,323 $ 1,775,321 $ 13,107,572 $ 3,322,227 $ 20,382,825 
lnvcstmcnts, at c-ost 153,425 1,002,710 2,736,735 I 1,769,599 15,662,469 
Receivables (net of applicable allowances 
for estimated uncollectible amounts): 

Taxes, including interest, penalties, and liens 3,884,239 2,123,361 3,170,898 3,961,189 13,139,687 
Accounts 5,074,600 50,322 16,058 822,969 5,963,949 

Prepaid expenses 44,574 542,558 99,215 686,347 
Due fi·om other funds 25,878 2,610 218 28,706 
Due from other govenuncnts 275,073 275,073 
Inventory, at cost 102,015 85,038 187,053 

Total assets $ 10,545,113 $ 4,636,274 $ 7,70!,622 $ 13,107,572 $ 20,335,528 $ 56,326,109 

Liabilities and Fund Balances 
Liabilities: 

Vouchers and accounts payable $ 1,292,336 $ 26,513 $ 333,335 $ 1,870,799 $ 955,920 $ 4,478,903 

Due to other funds 2,610 !98 26,121 28,929 

DefetTed revenue 3,870,402 2,064,841 3,082,080 3,949,240 12,966,563 

Accumulated unpaid sick and vacation pay 304,577 63,677 142 069 510,323 

Total liabilities 5,469,925 2,091,552 3,479,092 1,870,799 5,073,350 17,984,718 

Fund balances (deficit): 
Reserved 146,589 542,558 11,236,773 20!,727 12,127,647 

Unreserved ~designated for capital projects 1,279,114 1,279,114 

Unreserved 3,649,485 2,002,164 4,222,530 15,060 451 24,934,630 

Total fund balances 5,075,188 2,544,722 4,222,530 11,236,773 15,262,178 38,341,391 
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 10,545,113 $ 4,636,274 $ 7,701,622 $ 13,107,572 $ 20,335,528 

AmouJliS reported fOr govenunental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 
Capital assets used in govenunental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the 

funds as assets . 55,739,421 

Bond issues costs, net of amortization, are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 
as assets .. .. .......... 294,073 

Long~tenn liabilities, including liabilities for retirement obligations, are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore, are not reported as a fund liability in govemmental funds .. . ............. (28,879,244) 

·n1c difference in net assets between full accrual accounting and modified accrual accounting due to differing revenue 
and expense recognition criteria between the two methods .. (998,939) 

Net assets of govenunental activities .. ' . $ 64,496,702 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 21 



Kaulmkcc County, Illinois 
St}tlcnwnt of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Bahmces 
Gowrnmental Funds 
For the \'c.ar Ended November 30,2005 

O!hcr Total 
General Tort Capital Govemmental Govcnunental 

Fund l..iability Pension Projects Funds Funds 

Revenues· 

Taxes $12,112,081 $ 1,944,581 $ 2,951,358 $ $ 3,503,046 $20,511,066 

Intcrgovenunental 8,036,037 7,847 87,087 8,015,628 16,146,599 

Charges for services 4,337,937 4,337,937 

Licenses and permits 236,836 207,608 444,444 

Fines and fodCits 923,563 2,177,307 3,100,870 
Interest on investments 75,480 46,769 89,760 112,012 369,538 693,559 

Miscellaneous 391,299 30,225 365,642 167,293 954,459 

Total revenues 26,113,233 2,029,422 3,128,205 477,654 14,440,420 46,188,934 

Expenditures: 

Current: 
General govemmcnt 7,232,991 2,164,690 3,587,753 629,413 13,614,847 

Judiciary and cou11 related 6,173,572 536,733 6,710,305 

Public safety 9,361,215 292,769 449,159 10,103,143 

Health and welfare 3,015,502 3,015,502 

Transportalion 2,823,496 2,823,496 

Economic development 4,415,178 4,415,178 

Capital outlay 1,552,162 11,428,872 2,338,956 15,319,990 

Debt service principal 676,418 162,495 838,913 

Debt service interest 469,806 24g,819 719,625 

TotaJ expenditures 25,466,164 2,164,690 3,587,753 11,721,641 14,620,751 57,560,999 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 647,069 (135,268) (459,548) (11,243,987) (180,331) (II ,3 72,065) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 12,755 16,688,221 265,000 16,965,976 

Transfers out (16,953,221) (12,755) (16,965,976) 

Proceeds from long-term debt 17,234,518 17,234,518 

Total other financing sources (uses) 294,052 16,688,221 252,245 17,234,518 

Net change in fund balances 941,121 (135,268) (459,548) 5,444,234 71,914 5,862,453 

Fund balances, beginning of year 4,134,067 2,679,990 4,682,078 5,792,539 15,190,264 32,478,938 

Fund balances, end of year $ 5,075,188 $ 2,544,722 $ 4,222,530 $ II ,236, 773 $ 15,262,178 $38,341,391 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 

Reconciliation of the Statement of nevcnues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances of Governmental J<'unds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 

The issuance oflong-tenn debt (bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to 
governmental funds 

The payment of principal on long-term debt is reflected as an expense on the fund level 

statements, but is reported as a reduction of liabilities on the entity wide statements 

The current period change in compensated absences included in noncurrent liabilities 
does not require or provide current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported 
in governmental funds 

Depreciation on capital assets is not reflected on the fund level statements, but is reported 
as an expense on the entity wide statements 

Amortization on debt issue costs is not reflected on the fund level statements, but is reported 
as an expense on the entity wide statements 

The acquisition of capital assets is reported as an expense on the fund level statements, but 

is capitalized as an asset on the entity wide statements 

Full accrual accounting and modified accrual accounting use differing revenue and 
expense recognition criteria 

Change in net assets of governmental activities - entity wide statements 

Sec accompanying notes to the basic financial slatemcnls. 

$ 5,862,453 

(17,234,518) 

838,913 

(85,336) 

(2,447,!07) 

(2,523) 

39,159,647 

288,031 

$26,379,560 
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Kankakee County1 Illinois 
Statement of Net Assets 
J>roprietary Funds- Enterprise Funds 
November 30, 2005 

Entervrise Funds 
911 System Other Enter-

Fee Fund prise Funds Total 
Assets 
Current assets 

Cash $ 1,422,248 $ 54,170 $ 1,476,418 
Cash - restricted 287,100 287,100 
Investments l ,021,411 140,445 1,161,856 
Accounts receivable 308,969 27,224 336,193 
Due fi·om other fm1ds 223 223 
Prepaid expenses and line charges l 05,559 188 l 05,747 

Total cunent assets 3,145,287 222,250 3,367,537 

Property, plant, and equipment 
Building, improvements and equipment 7,154,109 142,118 7,296,227 '((' 

Accumulated depreciation (3,248,351) (80,598) (3,328,949) .. 
' Net property, plant, and equipment 3,905,758 61,520 3,967,278 

Prepaid line charges 78,403 78,403 
Bond issue costs, net and other assets 31,492 31,492 

Total assets $ 7,160,940 $ 283,770 $ 7,444,710 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities 

Current potiion - long-tenn debt $ 220,000 $ 8,280 $ 228,280 
Vouchers and accounts payable 31,864 18,707 50,571 
Payable from r · stricted assets 53,704 53,704 

52,289 1,938 54,227 
357,857 28,925 386,782 

Long-term liabilities 
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,530,000 17,630 2,547,630 
Accrued sick time 30,830 30,830 

Total long-term liabilities 2,560,830 17,630 2,578,460 
Total liabilities 2,918,687 46,555 2,965,242 

Net assets 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,155,758 35,610 1,191,368 

Restricted for debt service 233,396 233,396 
Unrestricted 2,853,099 201,605 3,054,704 

Total net assets 4,242,253 237,215 4,479,468 
Total liabilities and net assets $ 7,160,940 $ 283,770 $ 7,444,710 

Sec accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Kankalwe County, Illinois 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds - Enterprise Funds 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Enterprise Funds 
9 1 1 System Other Enter-
Fee Fund prise Funds 

Revenues: 
Charges for services and other fees $ 2,364,997 $ 300,114 
Miscellaneous 952 3,660 

Total revenues 2,365,949 303,774 

Operating expenses: 
Personal se~vices 1,281,646 I 72,282 
Contractual services 330,318 38,199 
Supplies and materials 11,723 I 6,596 
Other services and charges I 70,539 35,972 
Depreciation and amortization expense 570,636 8,532 

Total operating expenses 2,364,862 27I,58I 

Operating income (Joss) 1,087 32,I 93 

Nonoperating revenue (expense): 
Interest income 56,490 4,366 
Interest expense (129,72I) (1,439) 

Net nonoperating revenue (loss) (73,23 I) 2,927 

Change in net assets (72,144) 3 5,120 

Net assets, beginning of year 4,3 I4,397 202,095 

Net assets, end of year $ 4,242,253 $ 237,215 

Total 

$ 2,665,1 I 1 
4,612 

2,669,723 

1,453,928 
368,5 I 7 

28,3 I9 
206,5 I I 
579,168 

2,636,443 

33,280 

60,856 
(13I,I60) 

(70,304) 

(37,024) 

4,5 I 6,492 

$ 4,479,468 

Note: 91 I System Fee Fund revenues are pledged for payment of alternate revenue source bonds. 

Sec accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds- Enterprise Fund Types 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 
Internal activity -payments from (to) other funds 
Other receipts 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Interest payments on long-term debt 
Payments on long-tenn debt 
Purchase of equipment 

Net cash flows provided (used) by capital 

and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Purchase of investments 
Sale of investments 
Interest income 

Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash investments 

Cash and cash investments, beginning of year 

Cash and cash investments, end of year 

Reported on balance sheet as cash 
Included in balance sheet investments 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash provided from operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 
Amortization of line charges and bond issue costs 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in other assets 

Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries and benefits 
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

911 System 
Fee Fund 

$ 1,914,909 
(816,001) 

(992,878) 
485,264 

952 
592,246 

(133,615) 
(220,000) 

(31,520) 

(385, 135) 

(113,184) 
113,184 
24,599 
24,599 

231,710 

1,553,974 

$ 1,785,684 

$ I ,709,348 

76,336 
$ I ,785,684 

$ 1,087 

482,828 

87,809 

67,320 
(16,911) 
(29,887) 

$ 592,246 

Enterprise Funds 
Other Enter-
prise Funds Total 

$ 284,047 $ 2,198,956 
(84,981) (900,982) 

(171 ,560) (I ,164,438) 
(223) 485,041 

3,660 4,612 
30,943 623,189 

(I ,439) (135,054) 
(7 ,941) (227,941) 

(31,520) 

(9,380) (394,515) 

(113,!84) 
113,!84 

4,366 28,965 
4,366 28,965 

25,929 257,639 

168,686 1,722,660 

$ 194,615 $ 1,980,299 

$ 54,170 $ 1,763,518 

140,445 216,781 
$ 194,615 $ I ,980,299 

$ 32,193 $ 33,280 

8,532 491,360 
87,809 

(16,263) 51,057 

722 (16, 189) 

5,759 (24, 128) 

$ 30,943 $ 623,189 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds 
November 30, 2005 

Assets 

Cash 
Investments, at cost 
Receivables: 

Accounts receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities 
Vouchers payable 
Due to: 

Other governments 

Others 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets 
Restricted for other purposes 

Total net assets 
Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements. 

Private Purpose Agency 
Trust Funds Funds 

$ 146,396 $ 6,963,086 
1,526,734 903,164 

131,910 42,482 

$ 1,805,040 $ 7,908,732 

$ 68,806 $ 9,710 

4,760,210 
3,567,573 

400,000 

468,806 8,337,493 

1,336,234 (428,761) 
1,336,234 (428,761) 

$ 1,805,040 $ 7,908,732 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 
Fiduciary Funds- Private Purpose Trust Funds 

For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

Additions: 
Intergovernmental 
Interest 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Transportation 
Other services and charges 

Total deductions 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning of year 

Net assets, end of year 

See accompanying notes to the basic fmancial statements. 

Township 
MFT 

$ 1,713,576 
45,291 

1,758,867 

1,789,149 

1,789,149 

(30,282) 

1,310,843 

$ I ,280,561 

Contract 
Appraisal 

Work Total 

$ 4,483 $ I, 718,059 
45,291 

4,483 1,763,350 

1,789,149 
24,169 24,169 

24,!69 1,813,318 

(19,686) (49,968) 

75,359 1,386,202 

$ 55,673 $ 1,336,234 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note l- The Financial Reporting Entity 

Kankakee County, Illinois is a municipal corporation formed in 1853 operating under the county board form of 
government. The Board of Trustee-s consists oftwenty~cight members and is the legal and executive body of the County. 
In addition, there arc seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set fOrth in Illinois law. 
These ofiicials are Clerk of Courts, Auditor, Coroner, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff, and Treasurer. 

The County's basic financial statements include accounts of all officials and activities described above and all other 
County operations. The County's major operations include human, social and economic development services, ce11ain 
health care and community assistance services, public safety, a civil and criminal justice system, road and bridge 
maintenance and general administrative services. 

Component Units: As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAI'), the financial statements of tl1e 
reporting entity include those of Kankakee County, the primary government, and its component units. The County 

.. complies with the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, in defining the 
repor1ing entity. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the County are 
financially accountable. Organizations for which the County is accountable because it appoints a majority of the voting 
board, but is not financially accountable for its operations, are related organizations. Financial infonnation of component 
units is blended with that of Kankakee County where, among other criteria, the nature of services rendered by the 
component unit is almost exclusively for tl1e benefit of the County or where the governing body of the component unit is 
substantially the same as that of the County. Component unit financial information that is not blended witlr that of the 
County is discretely presented in a separate column on the County's government wide financial statements. A general 
description of the component units and related organizations follows: 

Component Units-· Discretely-presented 

The Kankakee County Public Building Commission is a separate municipal corporation created for the purpose of 
acquiring or enhancing public buildings or facilities. The Commissioners are appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the 
Chairman of the County Board. Because of its appointment powers, the County includes the Commission in its financial 
statements as a discretely-presented component unit using their fiscal year end October 31, 2005. The Commission issues 
separate financial statements which are on file at the Office ofFiuauce Director, Kankakee County, 189 E. Court St., Suite 
300, Kankakee, Illinois 60901. The County Board is not financially responsible for obligations of the Commission unless 
any such improvements are for its benefit 

Component Uni_ts- Blended 

The Kankakee County Health Department is an Illinois governmental entity, which is governed by an eight-member 
board, appointed by the County, which also approves its budget. The Health Department's financial statements are blended 
with those of the County because of the degree of control the County can exercise over its activities. Its transactions are 
accounted for in the Health Fund, a special revenue fund. 

The Veterans Assistance Commission is a central assistance committee composed of one delegate from each County post 
to oversee assistance to military veterans and their families. The oversight is shared by the Chairman of the County Board 
or his designee. Under Illinois law, the County is to provide office space, phone and supplies for the Commission and 
payment of assistance claims. Because of its oversight powers and the economic burden this requirement places on the 
County, its transactions are accounted for in the Veterans Assistance Fund which is blended with other special revenue 
funds. 

The Kankal<ee County Emergency Telephone System Board is created by the County Board which also defines its 
powers and duties. This Board of nine members, four of whom may be members of the County Board, oversees the 
implementation and operations of the emergency telephone system. Because it has reserved powers, the operations are 
accounted for in the 911 System Fee Proprietary Fund which is blended with other County funds. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Notes to Basic Financ.iaJ Statements 

Note I -The Financial Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Related Organjzations 

The Cooperative Extension Services of the College of Agriculture, of the University of illinois operate in counties 
where extension councils have been established to disseminate information on subjects related to agriculture and home 
economics and other University programs. Oversight is provided by extension councils which derive their duties and 
powers from the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois. Extension service programs and related local funding 
~re coordinated by an extension board numbering at least seven comprised of four members from the Extension Council 
and three fi"om the County Board. The County extends taxes to fmance operations of the Extension Service. The 
County is not financially responsible for any pm1 of the Extension Services' operations except as it may choose to be. 

The Kankakee County Housing Authority provides low-income housing and rental assistance to residents of the County. 
Its commissioners are appointed by the County Board Chairman. The Authority is a separate legal organization and has no 
fmancial accountability to the County. · 

Kankakee County is one of several governmental units that jointly govern tlre Kankakee Area Metropolitan 
Enforcement Group, (KAMEG), a law enforcement initiative aimed at reducing illegal drug traffic in the area. Tire 
County serves as implementing agency for grants received through the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority, and 
also provided enforcement personnel to KAMEG. 

Related organizations are not included in the financial statements of tire County. 

Joint Ventures 

The County is a participant with Will County in a joint venture to operate a juvenile justice center under an 
intergovernmental agreement, with operating responsibility vested principally in Will County. The facility is leased tl"om 
the Will County Public Building Commission for a period of 30 years by the joint venturers-.. See Note 8. Operation ofthe 
facility is under the responsibility of the Chief Judge of the 12th Judicial Circuit (Will County) with advice of the Chief 
Judge of the 21" Judicial Circuit (Kmrkakee County). Each pm1y to the agreement is responsible for their respective share 
of expenses in propmtion to beds leased, which amounts to 25% for Kankakee County. 

Note 2- Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Financial Statements The statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net assets report 
information on ali of the non-fiducimy activities of the primary government and it component units. Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are repmted separately from business­
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise the primary govemment is 
reported separately fi·om legally separate component units for which the prinrary goverrunent is financially accountable. As 
a general mle the effect ofinterfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide fmancial statements. 

The statement of activities displays the direct expenses of a given function or segment mrd the associated program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges 
provided by a given function or segment and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a pa1ticu!ar frurction or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements The County segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds 
in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for 
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary activities. These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the 
fund financial statements and all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note 2- Oasis of Presentation (Continued) 

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The 
measurement focus of govenunentai funds is on the sources, uses and balance of current financial resources. The 
County has presented the following major governmental funds: 

General ·- This is the primary operating fund of the County. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
govcrnmen~ except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance is available to the 
County for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws oflllinois. 

Tort Liability -- This fund accounts for the County's operations related to risk management for claims involving 
employee injury, general liability and liability arising from torts. 

Pension - Dris fund accounts for employee pension costs. 

Capital Projects Fund- This fund accounts for construction activities related to public safety adminisn·ative facilities. 

Proprietary funds are used to account for those County activities that are similar to those often found in the private 
sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position, and changes in fmancial 
position. The County has presented the following major proprietary fund: 

911 System Fee Fund - The fund is used to account for emergency dispatch services to residents of the Cowrty, 
including other units oflocal government. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

Private pU!]Jose trust funds - These funds report trust arl'angements under which principal and income benefit 
individuals, private organizations or other governments. 

Agency funds- These funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement or results 
of operations, but which are due to other individuals, agencies or govemments. 

Note 3- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompar>ying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity wid1 GAAP for local govemment units 
as prescribed in statements and intel]Jretations issued by GASB ar1d od1er recognized authoritative sources. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: The government-wide financial statements, component unit financial 
statements, and fund financial statements for proprietary and fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets 
and liabilities (whether curTent or non-current) are included on the balance sheet, and the operating statements present 
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when eamed, if measurable, and expenses are recognized as incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting," the County 
and its component units apply all GASB pronouncements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or 
before November 30, !989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements. Governments also have the option of 
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same 
limitation. The County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
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Kankal<cc County, Illinois 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note 3 --Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Governmental fund financial statements are rcp01ied using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. 
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within sixty (60) days of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues accrued at the end of the year include charges for 
services, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, intergovemmental revenues, investment earnings, propetiy taxes, sales 
taxes and special assessments. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However) debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments) 
are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. Proceeds from long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Und~r the terms of grant agreements) the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement 
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred) there are both restricted 
and unrestricted net assets available to finance the program. It is the County's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement 
grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

Proprietary funds separate all activity into two categories: operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. Operating 
revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and delivering goods. Non-operating revenues and 
expenses entails all other activity not included in operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating revenues and expenses 
include capital and noncapital financing activities and investing activities. 

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County adopts an annual budget and appropriation ordinance in accordance 
with lllinois law. The budget covers the fiscal year ending November 30, and is available for public inspection at least 
fifteen days prior to final adoption. The budget document is prepared for all budgetary funds using the modified accrual 
basis. Once the County budget has been adopted, no further appropriations shall be made during the year, except in the 
event of an immediate emergency at which time the County Board by a two-thirds vote may make appropriations in 
excess of those authorized in the original budget. During tl1e year, additional appropriations were made by the County 
Board. The original budget and all budgetary amendments and supplemental appropriations necessary during the year 
are included in tl1e final budget amounts presented in the budget-to-actual comparisons. 

Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents and Related Investments: Cash resources of a number of individual funds are 
combined to form a pool of cash and investments which is managed by the County Treasurer. Individual fund integrity is 
maintained through the County's records. Investments are recorded at cost, which approximates market. For purposes of 
the statement of cash flows the proprietary fund considers all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. 

The County has invested funds in the Illinois Funds Money Market Fund. This fund is an investments pool managed by 
the State Treasurer's Office which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for investment purposes. 
Investments in the fund are valued at the price the investment could be sold for as of year-end. 

All component units define cash and cash equivalents as cash on hand and deposits with original maturities of three months 
or less. 

Receivables: Property taxes receivable are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts based on historical 
experience of approximately 0.7 percent of extensions. Other accounts receivable are reported net of any allowance for 
uneollectibles. 

Inventories: Inventories consist of tax stamps, postage, and supplies recorded at cost. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note 3- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Capital Assets: Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infh1structure assets, are reported in the 
applicable govemmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the ftmd 
financial statements fOr proprietary fl.mds. Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual cost 
of more than its capitalization threshold and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Categories of capital assets and 
associated capitali7..ation thresholds are as follows: land- $100,000; buildings and improvements- $25,000 -$100,000; 
inliastructure assets (county roads and bridges)- $100,000; equipment- $5,000. Assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation. 

Cost ofnonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the asset's life arc not 
capitalized. 

The County depreciates assets on a straight line basis using the following estimated useful lives: 
Asset Estimated Useful Life 

Equipment, furniture and fixtures 
Buildings, structures and improvements 
Improvements other than buildings 

5 to 10 years 
3 0 to 50 years 
30 to 50 years 

Compensated Absences: Vested or accumulated vacation/sick leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable 
available fmancial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. 
Vested or accumulated vacation/sick leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an expense and liability for those funds as 
the benefits accrue to employees. No liability is recorded for nonvesting, accumulating rights to receive vacation/sick 
leave benefits; however, a liability is recognized for U1at p01tion of accumulating vacation/sick leave benefits that is 
estimated will be taken as "tenninal leave'' prior to retirement. County policy states than an employee must use each 
year's vacation days during the year. Sick and extended illness days may be accumulated to a total of 120 days per 
employee with no amount payable upon separation from service. Under collective bargaining agreements covering 
employees in the departments of County Sherif!; Corrections and County Recorder, 50% of accumulated days may be paid 
or credited for retirement purposes at levels ranging fi·om 50 to 70 days. 

Long Term Obligations: In the govemment-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities or proprietmy fund type financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts, as well 
as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the 
term of the related debt. In the fund fmancial statements, govenunental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is rep01ted as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received, are repmied as debt service expenditures. 

Property Taxes: The County is responsible for the assessment and collection of property taxes for all jurisdictions 
including the schools and special districts within the County. The County levies property taxes annually on or before 
the last Tuesday in December based on the assessed valuation determined in April of tl1e same year. Property tax 
payments are due in two equal installments, June I and September I, with the first installment being due no earlier than 
30 days fi·om date of mailing. Tax bills are generally mailed before May 15. Distributions to the County and other 
districts are made shortly thereafter. Property taxes become a lien on the property on January I. Taxes receivable at 
November 30 that are intended to finance tlre subsequent fiscal year are appropriately deferred. 

Estimates: The preparation of iinancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
the County to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements m1d the reported amounts of revenues m1d 
expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ fi·om those estimates. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note 3 - Sumnwry of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

lnterfuud Transactions: During the normal course of operations the County has numerous transactions between funds. 
Transfers represent movement of resources fl·om a fund receiving revenue to a fund through which those resources will be 
expended and arc recorded as other financing sources (uses) in governmental funds and as transfers in proprietary funds. 
Interfund transactions that would be treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses if they involved organizations external 
to the County are treated similarly \Vhen involving other funds of the County. 

Activity between funds that is refetrcd to as "due tolfi·om other fundS 11 represents transactions when one fund incurs 
expenditures/expenses for the benefit of another fund and expects repayment tl'om it. Any residual balances outstanding 
between the governmental activities and business-type activities arc reported in the government~wide financial statements 
as ''internal balances". 

Note 4- Deposits and Investments 

The County's investment policy conforms to state statutes which authorize the government to make deposits/investments 
in commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Trcasmy and U.S. Agencies, obligations of 
States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated within the three 
highest classifications by at least two standard rating services, and the Illinois Funds Money Market Fund. At November 
30, the County's investment in the Illinois Funds Money Market Fund was rated AAAm by Standard and Poors. 

Deposits in the amount of $1 ,069,472 were uninsured and uncollateralized at November 30. 

The Kankakee County Public Building Commission held County funds in the amount of $13,107,572 as of November 
30, 2005. All amounts were insured or collateralized. 

Under an ordinance goveming the borrowing and payment of general obligation bonds, alternate revenue source, certain 
cash balances in the 911 System Fee Fund, a business-type activity, are restricted for payment of interest and principal. 

Note 5- CDAP Loans Receivable 

The CDAP Loan Program is designed to assist Kankakee County in attracting or expanding local industry. The program 
provides low interest loans to projects that create or retain jobs primarily for low to moderate-income workers. 

In accordance with the Illilwis Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, Community Development 
Assistance Program, the County has the following Community Development loans outstanding. 

Balances Balances 

SWA Properties 
Mcintyre's Meats 
MTAE, Inc. 

Total 
Less allowance for 
uncollectible amounts: 
CDAP loans, net 

November 30) 
2004 

$ 20,093 
8,331 

357,398 
385,822 

(365 729) 
$_~-l),Q21 

Addition~ 

$ 

$ -

The allowance for loan losses reflects amounts estimated to be unrecoverable. 

Retirementf?: 

$20,093 

6 883 
26,976 

(6,883) 
$£Q,illl~ 

November 30, 
2005 

$ 
8,331 

350,5 I 5 
358,846 

(358,846) 

$~~~oo··--" 

The County has security agreements of perfected second position and personal guarantees or assignments of life insurance 
policies to be used as collateral on all CDAP loans. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note 6- Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended November 30, 2005 was as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Transportation network 
Buildings and improvements 
Buildings and improvements under 
capital lease agreements 

Equipment 
Vehicles 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Transportation network 
Buildings and improvements 
Buildings and improvements under 
capital lease agreements 

Equipment 
Vehicles 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Governmental activity capital assets, net 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated - Land 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Equipment 
Leasehold improvements 

Equipment under capital lease agreements 

Less: Accumulated depreciation 
Accumulated amortization, capital leases 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Business-type activities capital assets, net 

Balances 
November 30, 

2004 Additions 

$ 80,000 $ 213,1 14 
171 096 12 973 660 
251 096 llJ.li(h77 4 

15,404,807 556,231 
6,371,547 24,656,6 I 8 

5,180,000 
4,184,381 1,304,400 
3 724 549 612,595 

34,865,284 27,129,844 

8,020,685 717,279 
2,934,564 711,853 

865,588 160,209 
2,960,314 342,150 
2 462 796 _ill616 

17,243,947 2 447 107 
$Jl,m,W, $;Ll,l>f\2.?JJ 

$ 61 013 $ 

6,957,317 39,400 
197,277 

41 220 
7,195,814 39 400 
2,829,738 485,471 

7 851 5 889 
2,837,589 491 360 

$ 1,419,23.ll_ $_,{~J~~) 

Retirements 
and 

Reclassifications 

$ 

17,976 
14 995 
32,971 

15,453 
1_4,995 
30 448 

$25:U 

$ 

Balances 
November 30, 

2005 

$ 293,114 
13 144 756 
13437870 

15,961,038 
31,028,165 

5,180,000 
5,470,805 
4,322,149 

61,962,157 

8,737,964 
3,646,417 

1,025,797 
3,287,011 
2,963,417 

19,660,606 
$~£:l9A21 

$ 61 013 

6,996,717 
197,277 
41 220 

7 235,214 
3,315,209 

13 740 
3,328,949 

$d,.2RL27~ 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

Note 7- Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following: 

Loan/lease agreement dated September 21, 1999 and effective 
August I, 2000 with National City Bank providing for monthly 
installments of $21,309 through August l, 2009, including interest 
at 5.25% per annum, secured by capital improvements 

Debt Certificates, Series 2004 in the original amotmt of$6,000,000 
payable annually, December I in amounts ranging from $215,000 
to $410,000 and with interest payable semiannually on June I and 
December I at rates ranging tTom t .75% to 4.6% per armum, with an 
effective net interest rate of 4. I% 

Debt Ce1iificates, Series 2005 A in the original amount of$8,500,000 
payable annually, December l in amounts ranging from $170,000 
to $635,000 and with interest payable semiarmually on June 1 and 
December I at rates ranging from2.75% to 4.6% per annum, with an 
effective net interest rate of 4.0% 

Less discount 

Debt Cetiificates, Series 2005 Bin the original amount of$8,265,000 
payable annually, December I in amounts ranging from $135,000 
to $645,000 and with interest payable semiannually on June I and 
December I at rates ranging fi'om2.75% to 5.0% per annum, witlr an 
effective net interest rate of 4.57% 

Plus premium 

Capital lease obligations - See Note 8 

Compensated absences 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type Activities 

$3,300,000 general obligation alternate revenue source bonds due 
in annual installments beginning January I, 2003 in amounts rarrging 
fi·om $220,000 to $235,000 through 2017, plus interest at rates ranging 
fi·om 3.55% to 5%, secured by surcharges on telecommunications revenues 

Capital lease obligations - See Note 8 
Compensated absences 

Total business-type activities 

$ 867,475 

5,540,000 

8,500,000 
(109,930) 

8,265,000 
278,448 

5,124,691 

413 560 

$2,750,000 

25,910 
30 830 
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Note 7- Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Changes in long~term debt are as fOllows: 

Governmental activities: 
Debt Certiticates 
Loan/lease agreement 
Capital Leases 
Compensated absences 

Total 
Business-type activities: 

Bonds- Alternate Revenue Source 
Capital leases 
Compensated absences 

Total 

Balances 
November 30, 

_2i)Q4_ 

$ 5,750,000 
1,071,094 
5,248,986 

__B.!L223 
$[1J9,&.~2 

$ 2,970,000 
33,85 I 

Additions 

$16,765,000 

301,000 
_85 336 

$l1JjJ+33.Q 

$ 

30 830 
$"~.JQ,83Jl 

Balances 
Adjustments/ November 30, 
Retirements 2005 

$210,000 $22,305,000 
203,619 867,475 
425,295 5,124,691 

_.:!1),560 
$~ol~,2H $~],J..JJL1.~i> 

$220,000 $2,750,000 
7,941 25,910 

30 830 
$22],9Al $ ;z,aQ<:i,MD 

The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstauding at November 30, 2005, exclusive of compensated 
absences are as follows: 

Year Ending November 30, 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011-2015 
2016-2020 
2021-2025 
2026 

Note 8- Leases 

Principal 
$ 1,381,840 

1,675,008 
1,663,629 
1,595,538 
1,456,348 
8,197,156 
7,866,464 
7,067,108 

169 985 
$;)l,Q,Z;J_,Q76 

Interest 
$1,693,919 

1,292,240 
1,229,276 
1,165,730 
1,109,004 
4,623,918 
2,768,561 

932,367 
9 564 

$,[;!,824519 

The County has entered into various leasing anangcments for facilities and equipment that contribute to its ability to 
provide needed governmental services. Under generally accepted accounting principles, leases that transfer ownership 
at their conclusion or are otherwise tantamount to a transfer of property rights over the estimated service life of the 
underlying leasehold are accorded treatment similar to asset purchases. Those that do not are considered operating 
leases. Following are significant leasing arrangements currently in effect. 

Operating Leases 
In April 2002, the Kankakee County Emergency Telephone System Board entered into a sublease agreement with the 
Kankakee County Public Health Depmtment for 5,285 square feet of space which the Health Department leases 
indirectly from the Kankakee County Public Building Commission. The lease term is for 25 years at an initial annual 
rent of $18,762 subject to review every five years with a maximum increase at that time of 15%. 

Capilal Leases- Juvenile J usticc Center Facilities 
In October 1996 the County, together with Will County, Illinois, entered into a 30 year noncancellable lease agreement 
ending October 15, 2026 with the Will County Public Building Commission for a 100 bed county shelter care and 
detention home for minors. Kankakee County leases 25 beds, and Will County leases 75. This facility is financed by 
revenue bonds issued by the Will County Public Building Commission. 

Annual rental payments for Kankakee County, including operation and maintenance costs, range from $525,420 in 
2006 to $666,200 in year 2016. For years 2017 through 2026, rental payments will be determined through negotiation. 
The County is not liable for any lease payments attributable to that portion of the facility leased by Will County. 
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Note 8- Leases (Continued) 

The lease agreement fnrther provides that upon expiration of the lease term, either Kankakee or Will County 
may choose not to renew. In that event, the withdrawing party's interest will be purchased based on that 
party's prop01tionate share of funds contributed (including lease payments) applied to a value to be 
determined under provisions in the agreement. If neither pmiy chooses to renew, each county will bear its 
prop01tionate share of costs to restore the property through demolition. The County has provided for its 
lease obligation through a tax levy on all taxable property in the County, and finances, fi·om its General 
Fund, its share of the program operating expenses of the facility. 

Capital Leases- Health Department Facilities 
In January 2002, the County entered into a lease agreement with the Kankakee County Public Building Commission 
and an intergovernmental agreement with the Kankakee County Public Health Department for lease of facilities to be 
occupied by the Health Department. Subsequent to execution of this lease, the Kmikakee County Emergency 
Telephone System Board was added as a party to the intergovemmental agreement to lease 5,285 square feet of space 
subject to the aforementioned lease. The lease is for a period of25 years beginning November I, 200 I and provides for 
annual rent of $189,000 plus various executory costs through 2021, and amounts ranging from $164,588 to $188,015 
through the end of the term. 

The intergovernmental agreement provides for, among other things, the Kankakee County Emergency Telephone 
System Board to pay annual rent in the amount of $18,762 (see above operating lease information) to the Kankakee 
County Public Health Depmiment. The Health Department's share of the lease payments due the Kankakee County 
Public Building Commission amounting to 88% of the total requirements of the lease is paid to the County of 
Kankakee which then remits I 00% of the payment required to the Building Commission. The financial statements 
reflect the lease activity in the Health Fund and General Fund in proportion to their respective obligations tor lease 
payments. The lease is considered a general obligation alternate revenue bond and is secured by various revenues of the 
County Health Depariment. 

Capital Leases- Detention Facilities 
In March 2005, the County entered into a lease agreement with the Kankakee County Public Building Commission for 
detention facilities for a term expiring December 21, 2025 at the annual lease rate of $1. At the conclusion of the 
lease, the facilities become the property of the County. Accordingly, the value of the property is reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements as a special item at $24,716,912, the fair market value at the date of the lease. 

Capital Leases- Equipment 
The County leases computer equipment and vehicles under capital lease arrangements with lease terms of periods of 
five years, generally. The leases are similarly structured and generally provide for lease payments on a quarterly or 
semi-annual basis. 

Fut11re minimum lease payments under these capital leases are as follows: 
Will County Kankakee County 

Public Building Public Building 
Commissi_on Commission 

Year ended November 30, 
2006 $ 525,420 $ 189,000 
2007 548,880 189,000 
2008 576,398 189,000 
2009 603,001 189,000 
2010 548,613 189,000 
2011-2015 3,066,617 945,000 
2016-2020 666,199 945,000 
2021-2025 900,918 
2026 - 179 549 -----

Total minimum lease payments 6,535,128 3,915,467 

Other Leaee"s,__ __ _ 
Governmt;_ntal Business Tym~ 

$192,835 
80,167 
27,065 
27,065 
27,064 

131,307 
23,058 

508,561 

$ 9,381 
9,381 
9,380 

28,142 
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Note 8- Leases (Continued) 

Less: Amount representing estimated executory 
costs (maintenance and insurance), included 
in total minimum lease payments JJ25,830 

Net minimum lease payments 3,279,298 
Less: Amount representing interest 9 I 0 974 
Present value of net minimum lease payments $J""'.1§.§,3.2...4 

Note 9- Retirement Funds 

3,915,467 
L§39 557 

$6,n;;,c2J.Q 

508,56 I 
28 104 

$:1l!Q.:1~1 

28,142 
2.232 

$~~.2.L() 

The County's defined benefit pension plan, lllinois Municipal Retirement (IMRF), provides retirement, disability, 
annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. IMRF is an agent multiple 
employer pension plan that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local governments and school 
districts in !llinois. The lllinois Pension Code establishes the benefit provisions of the plan that can only be 
amended by the Illinois General Assembly. lMRF issues a financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained at www.imrf.org/pubs/pubs home1mge.htm or by 
writing to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, 2211 York Road, Suite 500, Oak Brook, Illinois 60523. 

Regular employees and elected County officials 

Employees participating in the regular IMRF plan and the elected officials !MRF plan are required to contribute 
4.50 percent and 7.50 percent, respectively, of their annual covered salary. The member rate is established by state 
statute. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The employer rates for calendar 
year 2005 were 9.56 percent and 67.06 percent, respectively, of payroll. The County contribution requirements are 
established and may be amended by the IMRF Board of Trustees. IMRF's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is 
being amor1ized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis (overfunded liability amortized on open 
basis). The amortization periods at December 31, 2005 were 27 years. 

For December 31, 2005, the County's annual pension cost of $1,401,434 and $198,788 respectively for the plans 
was equal to the County's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of 
the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions 
included (a) 7.50 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 
4 percent a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4 percent to 11.6 
percent per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit 
increases of 3 percent annually. The actuarial value of IMRF assets was determined using techniques that smooth 
the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period, with a I 5% corridor. 
The assumptions used for the 2005 actuarial valuation were based on the 2002-2004 experience study. 

Trend information is presented in the following table. 

Regular Elected Officials 
Actuarial Annual Pension Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension 

Valuation Date Cost fAPC) Cost fAPCl APC Contributed Obligation 
12/31/05 $1,401,434 $198,788 100% $-0-
12/31/04 1,041,087 218,816 100% -0-
12/31/03 607,788 241,876 100% -0-
12/31/02 479,644 198,042 100% -0-
12/31/01 568,194 108,124 100% -0-
12/31/00 610,253 171,367 100% -0-
12/31/99 649,047 129,991 100% -0-
12/31/98 642,385 65,749 100% -0-
12/31197 618,926 13,600 100% -0-
12/31/96 652,374 -0- 100% -0-
12/31/95 621,384 -0- 100% -0-
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Note 9- Retirement Funds (Continued) 

Employees pmiicipating in IMRF are required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The member 
rate is established by state statute. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The 
employer rate for calendar year 2005 was 18.84 percent of payroll. The employer contribution requirements are 
established and may be amended by the IMRF Board of Trustees. IMRF's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being 
amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis (overfunded liability amortized on open basis). 
The ammiization period at December 31, 2005 was 27 years. 

For December 31,2005, the County's annual pension cost of$617,055 was equal to the County's required and actual 
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31, 2003 actuarial valuation using the 
entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.50 percent investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4 percent a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional 
projected salmy increases ranging 11'0111 0.4 percent to 11.6 percent per year depending on age and service, attributable 
to seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3 percent annually. The actuarial value of IMRF assets 
was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments 
over a five-yem· period with a 15% corridor. The assumptions used for the 2005 actuarial valuation were based on the 
2000-2004 experience study. 

Trend information is presented in the following table. 
Actuarial Annual Pension 

Valuation Date Cost (APC_L_ 
12/31/05 $617,055 
12/31/04 544,800 
12/31/03 405,243 
12/31/02 389,565 
12/31/01 379,120 
12/31/00 335,709 
I 2/31/99 298,208 
12/31/98 321,117 
12/31/97 236,479 
I 2/31/96 248,3 I 2 
12/31/95 224,959 

Note 10- Deferred Compensation Plan 

Percentage of 
APC Contributed 

100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
100% 
!00% 
100% 

Net Pension 
Obligation 

$-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-
-0-

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457. The plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future 
years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or emergency. 

Note II -lnterfund Accounts and Transfers 

lnterfund receivables and payables are principally due to the General Fund incurring expenditures for the benefit of the 
County Garbage Tipping Fund. Balances are as follows: 

Governmental Funds: 
Gene.ral Fund 
Tort Liability 
Pension 
Other Governmental Funds 

Total Governmental Funds 
Proprietary Funds: 

Animal Control 
Total Due To/From Other Funds - A II Funds 

Receivable 

$25,878 

2,610 
_ _ll~ 
28,706 

Payable 

$ 2,610 
!98 

22...ill 
28,929 

$~~~2 
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Note II -lntcrfund Accounts and Transfcr·s (Continued) 

Transfers during the year ended November 30, 2005 arc summarized as follows: 
__ h_l __ 

General Fund $ 12,755 $ 
Capital Projects Fund 16,688,221 
Other Nonmf\ior Funds 265 000 

$J~6j,~l!l 

__ ._OtlL __ _ 
16,953,221 

__ 12. 755 

$J~,'/illU.ti 

The transfer fi·om the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund was to account for capital projects financed with 
proceeds from issuance of debt certificates and administered by a component unit. See Note 14 for additional 
information. 

Note 12- Additional Fund Disclosures 

The following funds had expenditures in excess of appropriations: 

Tort Fund 
Pension Fund 
Veterans Assistance 

Comi Security 
Law Library 

Special Assessments - The County acts as collection agent for improvements made to various properties and financed 
through special assessments against those properties. The balance owed by properiy owners at November 30 for 
ArTowhead Hills and Riverside Count1y Estates amounted to $948 plus any accrued interest at the annual rate of 9% 
and $38,139 plus any accrued interest at the annual rate of7%, respectively. The County has no obligation for this debt 
which is reflected in the agency funds. 

Note 13 -Insurance and Related Risks 

The County is exposed to various risks in the course of its daily operations. These include liability under workers' 
compensation laws, employee health insurance and general liability under tort laws. Except for workers' compensation 
insurance, described in the following paragraph, the County purchases commercial insurance for these risks. 

The County has entered into an agreement with the lllinois Public Risk Fund. The pooling agreement permits public 
agencies within the meaning of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of the State of Illinois to provide a means 
whereby members of the Fund could contract with each other to protect against liability or loss under the Workers' 
Compensation and Occupational Diseases Laws of the Stale oflllinois. 

The County's cost is based on rates detennined by the Tmstees of tl1e Fund, applied to its payroll costs and adjusted for 
its loss experience. Members of the Fund may also be subject to additional contributions not to exceed I 0 percent of 
such member's contribution for the most recent fiscal year of the Fund if additional reserves are deemed necessary by 
the Fund's trustees. No additional assessments have been made as of the eunent year-end. 

Note 14- Contingencies and Commitments 

During 2005, the County issued debt certificates in the amount of $16,765,000 for construction of an addition to its 
detention h1cility. Proceeds of the certificates were deposited to the Building Commission, with whom an 
intergovernmental agreement was entered into for construction of the facility and payment of debt service from funds 
advanced by the County. In 2005) the Commission entered into contractual commitments for construction costs of 
approximately $14,620,000. Proceeds fi·om the debt certificates and related construction activity have been reflected in 
the County financial statements in a capital projects ftmd, with net assets reserved for future construction activity. 
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Note 14 -Contingencies nnd Comm itm cnts (Continued) 

Under terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs may be questioned leading to 
possible reimbursement claims by grantor agencies. 

The County is involved in several lawsuits arising in the normal course of business, including claims for property 
damage and personal injury. The County carries insurance for these claims and has historically been able to settle such 
claims within the limits of its coverage. The likelihood of any loss in excess of these limits is not presently 
determinable. 

Note 15- Significant Transactions 

During the year, the County accepted ownership of certain detention facilities through a lease agreement with the 
Kankakee County Public Building Commission, a discretely presented component unit. As discussed more fully in 
Note 8, this transaction resulted in recognition of revenues in ti1e amount of $24,716,912 reflecting the value of the 
prope1ty in excess of the related lease obligations. 
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Kankakee County 1 Illinois 

Budgetary Comparison Sc-hedule 

Gcnc1·al Fund- Revenues and Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
For the Year Ended November· 301 2005 

Over (Under) 

Original Final Final 
Budget Budget Actual Budget 

Taxes: 

Properly l<lxes $ 3,185,000 $ 3,185,000 $ 3,447,840 $ 262,840 

Sales tax 7,502,796 8,196,620 8,664,241 467,621 
Total Taxes 10,687,796 11,381,620 12,112,081 730,461 

Intergovenunental: 

State income tax 2,150,000 2,150,000 2,269,476 119,476 
Replacement taxes 725,000 725,000 860,561 135,,561 
Inheritance tax 80,000 80,000 149,465 69,465 

Federal inmate housing 1,456,534 1,959,000 1,895,666 (63,334) 

Grants and other reimbursements 3,163,788 3,254,939 2,860,869 (394,070) 

Total Intergovernmental 7,575,322 8,168,939 8,036,037 (132,902) 

Charges for Services: 

County Recorder fees 650,000 650,000 702,482 52,482 
Circuit Clerk fees 2,668,100 2,668,100 2,106,993 (561,107) 
Building and Zoning fees 345,000 345,000 387,329 42,329 
Sheriff fees 259,600 259,600 230,248 (29,352) 
County Clerk fees 166,700 166,700 179,388 12,688 
Other fees and reimbursements 194,500 369,967 731,497 361,530 

Total Charges for Services 4,283,900 4,459,367 4,337,937 (121,430) 

License and Permits: 

Liquor licenses 37,000 37,000 29,225 (7,775) 

Cable TV franchise fees 110,000 110,000 119,889 9,889 
Contractor licenses 67,000 67,000 77,075 !0,075 

Gambling machine licenses 11,250 11,250 10,647 (603) 

Total Licenses and Penn its 225,250 225,250 236,836 11,586 

Fines and Forfeits: 

County fines and forfeitures 474,000 474,000 445,483 (28,517) 

Real estate tax penalties 450,000 450,000 478,080 28,080 

Total Fines and Forfeits 924,000 924,000 923,563 (1,040) 

Interest 51,500 51,500 75,480 23,980 

Miscellaneous 229,700 229,700 391,299 161,599 

Total Revenues 23,977,468 25,4·10.376 26,113,233 672,857 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 15,000 15,000 12,755 $ (2,245) 

Transfers out (16,953,221) (16,953,221) 

Proceed~ from long~tenn debt 276,711 17,234,518 16,957,807 

Total Other Financing Sources (lJses) 15,0110 291,711 294,052 2,341 

Total Revenues <Uld Other Fimmcing 
Sources (Uses) $ 23,992,468 $ 25,732,087 $ 26,407,285 $ 675,198 
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Kanlmkce Count-y, Illinois 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund - ICxpenditures 

For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

General Government 
Community Services 

Relief 

Management Information Systems (MIS) 
Personal services 

Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total MIS 

Board of Review 
Personal services 

Contractual services 
Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Total Board of Review 

County Administration 

Personal services 
Contractual services 

Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Debt service principal 

Debt service interest 

Total County Administration 

County Auditor 

Personal services 
Contractual services 

Supplies 

Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total County Auditor 

Original 
Budget 

$ 

121,100 
1,000 

5,000 
221,400 

10,500 

359,000 

23,040 
600 
600 

11,760 

36,000 

250,550 
43,800 

4,800 
4,500 

52,933 

9,090 
14,327 

380,000 

139,050 

6,200 

4,000 

12,750 

162,000 

Over (Under) 

Final Final 
Budget Actual Budget 

$ $ $ 

121,100 115,848 (5,252) 

1,000 (1,000) 

5,000 1,321 (3,679) 

221,400 232,779 I 1,379 

10,500 4,843 (5,657) 

359,000 354,791 (4,209) 

23,040 22,656 (384) 

600 216 (384) 

600 457 (143) 

11,760 I I ,999 239 

36,000 35,328 (672) 

250,550 235,368 (15,182) 

43,800 40,162 (3,638) 

4,800 4,597 (203) 

4,500 2,834 (I ,666) 

52,933 73,852 20,919 

9,090 7,126 (1,964) 

14,327 14,738 4 I I 

380,000 378,677 (1,323) 

119,050 111,649 (7,401) 

125 125 

6,200 4,035 (2, 165) 

4,000 8,1 19 4,1 19 

12,750 6,079 (6,671) 

142,000 130,007 (II ,993) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund- Expenditures 
For theY car Ended November 30,2005 

General Government (continued) 
County Recorder 

Personal services 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 

Total County Recorder 

Election Commission 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total Election Commission 

Regional Superintendent of Schools 
Contractual services 

Total Regional Superintendent of Schools 

County Clerk 
Personal services 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 

Total County Clerk 

Buildings and Grounds 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 
Debt service principal r 

Debt service interest 

Total Buildings and Grounds 

Original 

Budget 

156,200 
6,600 
1,600 

164,400 

245,552 
13,875 

101,273 
125,000 

14,300 

500,000 

315,115 

315,115 

16!,695 
17,800 
3,505 

183,000 

507,524 
70,000 
32,926 

399,945 

23,900 
193,280 
62,425 

1,290,000 

Over (llnder) 
Final Final 

Budget Actual Budget 

156,200 157,678 1,478 
6,600 5,033 (I ,567) 
I ,600 I ,131 (469) 

164,400 163,842 ____ (558) 

245,552 229,160 (16,392) 
18,739 18,368 (371) 

123,537 101,856 (21,681) 
10,000 4,681 (5,319) 
14,300 17,575 3,275 

412,128 371,640 (40,488) 

315,115 292,444 (22,671) 

315,115 292,444 (22,671) 

161,695 161,625 (70) 
17,800 16,853 (947) 
3,505 2,314 (1,191) 

183,000 180,792 (2,208) 

507,524 461,969 (45,555) 
70,000 95,140 25,140 
32,926 144,504 111,578 

415,587 32,134 (383,453) 
23,900 30,965 7,065 
93,280 (93,280) 

62,425 (62,425) 

I ,205,642 764,712 ( 440,930) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund ~ Expenditures 
For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

General Government (continued) 
Capital Development 

Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 
Debt service principal 
Debt service interest 

Total Capital Development 

Health Insurance and Utilities 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 
Insurances 

Total Health Insurance and Utilities 

Liquor Commissioner Fees 

Planning Department 
Personal services 
Contractual services 

Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total Platming Depmiment 

County Treasurer 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Other services and charges 

Total County Treasurer 

Original 

Budget 

372,755 

5,000 
210,000 
212,245 

800,000 

37,000 

453,675 
1,880,000 

2,370,675 

2,400 

499,567 

253,991 
17,000 
20,000 

65,511 

856,069 

184,205 
4,200 

35,150 

6,445 

230,000 

Over (Under) 
Final Final 

Budget Actual Budget 

356,711 379,595 22,884 

5,000 255,297 250,297 

655,771 641,696 (14,075) 

334,229 452,604 118,375 

1,351,711 1,729,192 377,481 

37,000 42,291 5,291 

453,675 653,892 200,217 

2,077,661 2,094,556 16,895 

2,568,336 2,790,739 222,403 

2,400 2,400 

499,567 452,224 (47,343) 

412,458 411,346 (1,112) 

17,000 19,238 2,238 

20,000 14,688 (5,312) 

127,511 125,684 (1,827) 

1,076,536 1,023,180 (53,356) 

184,205 175,196 (9,009) 

4,200 874 (3,326) 

35,150 37,649 2,499 

6,445 5,835 (610) 

230,000 219,554 (10,446) 
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Kankal<ee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund - I~xpenditures 

For the Y car Ended November 30,2005 

General Government (continued) 
Finance Department 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total Finance Department 

Contingency 

Total Contingency 

Supervisor of Assessments 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total Supervisor of Assessments 

ZBA- BOE Planning 
Personal services 
Contractual services 

Total ZBA - BOE Planning 
Total General Government 

Original 
Budget 

165,500 

36,000 
2,200 

48,800 
7,500 

260,000 

300,000 

275,748 

86,720 
26,032 

3,000 
4,500 

396,000 

I 1,000 
11,000 

22,000 

$ 8,626,659 $ 

Over (Under) 
Final Final 

Budget Actual Budget 

165,500 134,440 (31 ,060) 
36,000 36,599 599 
2,200 3,031 831 

18,800 33,667 14,867 
7,500 12,601 5,101 

230,000 220,338 (9,662) 

275,748 273,262 (2,486) 
86,720 85,221 (1,499) 
26,032 24,946 (1,086) 

3,000 (3,000) 
4,500 3,492 (I ,008) 

396,000 386,921 (9,079) 

I 1,000 6,301 (4,699) 
11,000 6,794 (4,206) 

22,000 13,095 (8,905) 
9,074,268 $ 9,057,652 (16,616) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
General Fund - Expenditures 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Judiciary and Court Related 
Circuit Court 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total Circuit Court 

Circuit Clerk 
Personal services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total Circuit Clerk 

Child Support and Maintenance 
Personal services 
Supplies 

Total Child Support and Maintenance 

Jury Commission 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total Jury Commission 

States Attorney 

Personal services 
Contractual services 
Supplies 

Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total States Attorney 

Original 
Budget 

92,300 

126,500 
7,800 

3,000 
18,400 

248,000 

884,528 

46,267 
1,500 
2,705 

935,000 

43,500 

6,500 

50,000 

28,200 

1,700 
11,700 
2,400 

146,000 

190,000 

I ,636,298 

115,557 

48,970 
22,452 

56,270 

I ,879,547 

Over (Under) 

Final Final 
Budget Actual Budget 

92,300 97,368 5,068 

101,500 81,535 (19,965) 

7,800 9,428 1,628 

3,000 2,158 (842) 

18,400 28,055 9,655 

223,000 218,544 (4,456) 

894,528 895,922 1,394 

46,267 41,900 (4,367) 

1,500 432 (1,068) 

2,705 3,625 920 

945,000 941,879 (3,121) 

48,500 46,720 (1,780) 

6,500 5,694 (806) 

55,000 52,414 (2,586) 

28,200 29,888 1,688 

1,700 2,553 853 

11,700 13,031 I ,331 

2,400 2,262 (138) 

196,000 175,830 (20, 170) 

240,000 223,564 (16,436) 

1,613,551 I ,577,510 (36,041) 

131,200 97,402 (33,798) 

48,970 38,093 (I 0,877) 

22,452 12,389 (I 0,063) 

61,060 50,690 (10,370) 

1,877,233 1,776,084 (101,149) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund- Expenditures 
For the Y car Ended November 30, 2005 

Judiciary and Court Related (continued) 
Public Defender 

Personal services 

Contractual Services 
Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Total Public Defender 

Probation 
Personal services 

Contractual services 
Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total Probation 

DNDC 
Contractual Services 

Other services and charges 

TotalDNDC 

Total Judiciary and Court Related 

Original 

Budget 

600,900 

19,968 
3,950 

100 

624,918 

1,283,713 
313,097 

7,000 
2,500 

24,323 

1,630,633 

30,000 
395,000 

425,000 

$ 5,983,098 $ 

Over (Under) 
Final Final 

Budget Actual Budget 

600,900 585,7 I 3 (15, 187) 
19,968 16,538 (3,430) 

3,950 3,494 (456) 
100 204 104 

624,918 605,949 (I 8,969) 

1,283,713 1,277,613 (6,100) 
563,097 603,169 40,072 

7,000 8,193 1,193 
2,500 766 (1,734) 

35,491 47,605 12,114 

1,891,801 1,937,346 45,545 

30,000 8,520 (21 ,480) 
395,000 427,279 32,279 

425,000 435,799 10,799 

6,281,952 $ 6,191,579 $ (90,373) 
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Kanl<akec County, Illinois 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fuud- Expenditures 
For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

Public Safety 

Shcrif(s Office 

Personal services 

Contractual services 

Supplies 

Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Debt service principal 

Debt service interest 

Total Sheriffs Office 

Corrections- Combs Center 

Personal services 

Contractual services 

Supplies 

Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total Corrections 

Corrections - Downtown 

Personal services 

Supplies 

Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total Corrections 

Auxiliary Police 

Contractual services 

Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Total Auxiliary Police 

Original 

Budget 

3,286,778 

55,096 

56,054 

382,221 

246,422 

308,578 

23,054 

4,358,203 

2,480,280 

37,000 

48,100 

76,200 

536,000 

3,177,580 

694,057 

694,057 

200 

5,000 

300 

5,500 

Over (Under) 

Final Final 

Budget Actual Budget 

3,349,378 3,314,412 (34,966) 

50,896 63,834 12,938 

102,695 108,477 5,782 

378,421 420,644 42,223 

231,222 396,989 165,767 

308,578 27,596 (280,982) 

23,054 2,464 (20,590) 

4,444,244 4,334,416 (1 09,828) 

3,293,280 3,229,797 (63,483) 

53,400 50,014 (3,386) 

133,100 158,903 25,803 

94,944 85,365 (9,579) 

801,058 829,239 28,181 

4,375,782 4,353,318 (22,464) 

256,938 256,938 

924 924 

37,065 37,065 

319,057 12,499 (306,558) 

319,057 307,426 (11,631) 

200 (200) 

5,000 4,076 (924) 

300 1,213 913 

5,500 5,289 (211) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Compar·ison Schedule 

General Fund -Expenditures 

:For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

Public Safety (continued) 
Coroner 

Personal services 
Contractual services 

Supplies 

Capital outlay 
Other services and charges 

Total Coroner 

Dispatch Services 
Contractual services 

Total Dispatch Services 

MeritCormnission 
Personal services 

Supplies 
Other services and charges 

Total Merit Commission 

ESDA 
Personal services 
Contractual services 

Supplies 
Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total ESDA 

Total Public Safety 

Total Fund Expenditures 

Original 

Budget 

148,088 
72,000 

4,900 
1,112 

13,900 

240,000 

468,000 

468,000 

2,275 
475 

7,250 

10,000 

99,818 
4,800 

4,020 
40,253 

280,480 

429,371 

$ 9,382,71 l $ 

$ 23,992,468 $ 

Over (Under) 
Final Final 

Budget Actual Budget 

164,088 159,673 (4,4 I 5) 
98,000 103,260 5,260 

4,900 4,598 (302) 
2,112 3,522 I ,410 

15,900 13,723 (2,177) 

285,000 284,776 (224) 

468,000 467,786 (214) 

468,000 467,786 (214) 

2,275 1,200 (1,075) 
475 !52 (323) 

7,250 5,509 (1,741) 

10,000 6,861 (3,139) 

124,818 115,134 (9,684) 
4,800 4,571 (229) 
4,020 5,399 1,379 

40,253 279,062 238,809 
294,393 52,895 (241,498) 

468,284 457,061 (I 1,223) 

I 0,375,867 $ 10,216,933 (158,934) 

25,732,087 $ 25,466,164 (265,923) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Tort Liability Fund 
For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

Revenues: 

Property taxes $ 
Intergovernmental 

Interest on investments 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenue 

Expenditures: 

Personal services 

Contractual services 

Supplies and materials 

Capital outlay 

Other services and charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures $ 

Original 

Budget 

I ,948,217 $ 

20,000 

26,500 

1,994,717 

413,500 

1,535,000 

3,000 

5,000 

37,000 

1,993,500 

1,217 $ 

Over 

Final (Under) 

Budget Actual Budget 

1,948,217 $ 1,944,581 $ (3,636) 

20,000 7,847 (12,153) 
26,500 46,769 20,269 

30,225 30,225 

1,994,717 2,029,422 34,705 

413,500 416,877 3,377 
1,535,000 1,690,778 155,778 

3,000 1,036 (1,964) 

5,000 (5,000) 
37,000 55,999 18,999 

1,993,500 2,164,690 171,190 

1,217 $ (135,268) $ (136,485) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Pension Fund 
For theY car Ended November 30, 2005 

Original 

Budget 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 2,956,868 
Jntergovernm en ta I 80,000 
Interest on investments 62,000 

·Total revenues 3,098,868 

Expenditures: 
Personal services 2,733,000 

Total expenditures 2,733,000 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures $ 365,868 

$ 

$ 

Over 
Final (Under) 

Budget Actual Budget 

2,956,868 $ 2,951,358 $ (5,510) 
80,000 87,087 7,087 
62,000 89,760 27,760 

3,098,868 3,128,205 29,337 

2,733,000 3,587,753 854,753 

2,733,000 3,587,753 854,753 

365,868 $ (459,548) $ (825,416) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
Required Supplementary Information~ Schedule of Funding Progress 
November 30, 2005 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded 
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded 
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio 

Date __ _(&__ (b) 
-~ 

(b-a) (a/b) 

Count:,; EmRloxees 
12/31105 $27,459,933 $29,718,645 $2,258,712 92.40% 
12/31104 24,!84,41 I 26,236,791 2,052,380 92.18% 
12/3 J/03 22,326,589 23,686,164 1,359,575 94.26% 
12/31102 21,360,038 20,840,153 (519,885) 102.49% 
12/3 J/01 21,812,188 18,938,656 (2,873,532) 115.17% 
12/3 J/00 20,!68,833 17,188,352 (2,980,48 I) 117.34% 
12/3 J/99 17,274,465 15,717,081 (1,557,384) 109.91% 
12/31/98 14,868,421 14,228,327 (640,094) 104.50% 
12/3 J/97 13,288,074 14,174,835 886,761 93.74% 
12/31196 12,262,498 12,584,809 322,311 97.44% 

Covered 
Payroll 
(c) 

$14,659,351 
12,335, !53 
I 1,172,572 
10,097,760 
9,360,690 
8,570,964 
7,829,285 
7,584,238 
7,17!,567 
7,359,454 

On a nuu·ket value basis, the actuarial value of assets basis as of December 31, 2005 is $27,753,786. 
funded ratio would be 93.39%. 

Elected Officials 
12/31105 $ 459,492 $2,205,785 $1,746,293 20.83% $244,977 
12/3 J/04 273,213 2,172,100 1,898,887 12.58% 215,424 
12/31/03 38,514 1,979,235 1,940,721 1.95% 212,640 
12/3 !102 632,500 3,052,446 2,419,946 20.72% 238,264 
12/31/01 478,465 2,794,686 2,316,221 17.12% 225,447 
12/3 J/00 328,734 3,578,784 3,250,050 9.19% 373,104 
12/3 J/99 1,153,921 3,296,643 2,142,722 35.00% 377,226 
12/31/98 542,538 1,906,602 1,418,064 27.67% 328,745 
12/3 J/97 37,605 782,341 744,736 4.81% 302,811 

UAALas a 
Percentage 
of Covered 

Payroll 
((b-aVc) 

I 5.4 I% 
16.64% 
12.17% 

(5.15%) 
(30.70%) 
(34.78%) 
(19.90%) 
(8.44%) 
12.36% 
4.38% 

On a market basis, the 

712.84% 
881.46% 
912.68% 

1015.66% 
1027.39% 
871.08% 
568,02% 
431.36% 
245.94% 

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2005 is $479,337. On a market basis, the funded ratio 
would be 21.73%. 

Sheriff's Law Enforcement Personnel 
12/3 !105 $11,741,288 $15,072,567 $3,33 I ,279 77.90% $3,275,241 101.71% 
12/31/04 10,745,751 13,096,309 2,350,558 82.05% 3,141,870 74.81% 
12/3 J/03 9,686,101 I 1,969,252 2,283,151 80.92% 2,930,176 77.92% 
12/31/02 9,245,55 I 10,496,927 1,251,376 88.08% 2,602,306 48.09% 
12/31/01 9,598,035 9,686,168 88,133 99.09% 2,629,123 3.35% 
12/31100 8,359,423 9,027,113 667,690 92.60% 2,584,363 25.84% 
12/31/99 7,390,338 7,655,247 264,909 96.54% 2,313,489 11.45% 
12/31198 6,372,879 7,011,642 638,763 90.89% 2,349,067 27.19% 
12/31197 6,725,179 7,340,556 615,377 91.62% 2,271,488 27.09% 
12/31/96 5,574,101 6,680,768 1,106,667 83.44% 2,269,922 48.75% 

On a mm·kct value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31,2005 is $11,888,256. On a market basis, the funded 
ratio would be 78.87%. 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 
Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Funding Progress 
November 30, 2005 

.*Dtgcst of_~Uanges 
Assumptions 

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the actuarial accrued liability for 2005 arc based on the 2002-2004 
Experience Study. 

The principal changes were: 
- The 1994 Group Annuity M011ality implemented. 
- For Regular mcml:x;rs, fewer normal and more early retirements are expected to occur. 
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Other Supplementary Information 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Tort Liability Insurance Fund 
Other Supplementary Information- Disclosure of Tort Expenditures nuder PA 91-0628 
November 30, 2005 

Property and liability insurance 
Illinois Public Risk Fund, workmen's compensation insurance 
Salaries (States Attorney, Civil Division and administrative) 
Illinois Depmimcnt of Employment Security, unemployment insurance 
River Valley Detention Center insurance 
Miscellaneous claims, net of insurance reimbursements 
Other 

$ 882,741 
782,202 
346,155 

70,722 
25,470 
44,184 
13 216 

$ci,J2,'1,69J) 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Combining Balance Sheet- Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
N ovem bcr 30, 2005 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Special Debt Governmental 
Revenue Service Funds 

Assets 
Cash $ 3,300,955 $ 21,272 $ 3,322,227 
Investments, at cost 11,757,493 12,106 1 1, 769,599 
Receivables, (net, where applicable 

of allowance for uncollectibles): 
Taxes, including interest, penalties and liens 3,574,567 386,622 3,961,189 
Accounts 822,969 822,969 
Loans 

Prepaid expenses 99,215 99,215 
Due from other funds 218 218 
Due from other governments 275,073 275,073 
Inventory, at cost 85,038 85,038 

Total assets $ 19,915,528 $ 420,000 $ 20,335,528 

Liabilities and Fund Balances: 
Liabilities 

Vouchers and accounts payable $ 955,920 $ $ 955,920 
Due to other funds 26,121 26,121 
Deferred revenue 3,569,674 379,566 3,949,240 
Compensated absences 142,069 142,069 

Total liabilities 4,693,784 379,566 5,073,350 

Fund balances 
Reserved -debt service and capital projects 40,434 40,434 
Reserved - other 161,293 161,293 
Unreserved 15,060,451 15,060,451 

Total fund balances 15,221,744 40,434 15,262,178 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 19,915,528 $ 420,000 $ 20,335,528 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 

Combining Statement of Hevcnucs, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balance- Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Nonmajor 

Special 

Revenue 
Revenues: 

Taxes $ 3,268,566 
In t ergo v ernm en ta I 8,015,628 
Licenses and permits 207,608 
Fines and fees 2,177,307 
Interest on investments 367,751 
Miscellaneous 167,293 

Total revenues 14,204,153 

Expenditures: 

General government 629,413 
Judiciary and court related 252,366 
Public safety 449,159 
Public health and welfare 3,015,502 
Transporiation 2,823,496 
Economic development 4,415,178 

Capital outlay 2,338,956 
Debt service principal 60,595 
Debt service interest 114,497 

Total expenditures 14,099,162 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 104,991 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 

Operating transfers out (12,755) 
Total other financing sources (uses) (12,755) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures and other sources (uses) 92,236 

Fund balance, beginning of year 15,129,508 
Fund balance, end of year $ 15,221,744 

Total 

Nonmajor 

Debt Govenm1ental 
Service Funds 

$ 234,480 $ 3,503,046 

8,015,628 

207,608 

2,177,307 

1,787 369,538 
167,293 

236,267 14,440,420 

629,413 

284,367 536,733 
449,159 

3,015,502 

2,823,496 

4,415,178 

2,338,956 

101,900 162,495 

135,322 249,819 

521,589 14,620,751 

(285,322) (180,331) 

265,000 265,000 

(12,755) 

265,000 252,245 

(20,322) 71,914 

60,756 15,190,264 
$ 40,434 $ 15,262,178 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Balance Sheets 

November 30, 2005 

Major Funds Nonmajor Funds 

County County Court 
Tort Recorder Clerk Treasurer Treasurer's Subrecipient Security 

Liability Pension Computer Computer Computer Interest Grants Fee 

Assets 

Cash $ 917,323 $ 1,775,321 $ 81,206 $ 7,677 $ 31.491 $ 32,887 s '$ 124.959 
Investments. at cost 1,002,710 2,736,735 18,891 42,065 37,823 43,378 261,610 

Receivables: 
Taxes (net of allowance for 

estimated uncollectibles) 2,123,361 3,170,898 

Accounts 50,322 16,058 3,042 1,292 15,670 15,670 36,281 24.349 

Prepaid expenses 542,558 5,998 2,813 3.442 

Due from other funds 2,610 198 

Due from other governments 

Inventory, at cost 

Total assets $ 4,636,274 $ 7,701,622 $ 109,335 $ 51,034 s 87,797 $ 9L935 $ 36.281 s 414360 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Vouchers payable $ 26,513 $ 333,335 $ 3.364 $ 8,210 $ s $ 36,281 s 6,186 

Due to other funds 198 

Deferred revenue 2,064,841 3,082,080 

Compensated absences 63,677 

Total liabilities 2,091,552 3,479,092 3,364 8,210 36,281 6,186 

Fund balance· reserved 542,558 5,998 2,813 3.442 

Fund balance· unreserved 2,002,164 4,222,530 99,973 42,824 84,984 91,935 404,732 

Total fund balance (deficit) ____1.544,722 4,222,530 105,971 42,824 87,797 91,935 408,174 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 4,636,274 $ 7,701,622 $ 109,335 $ 51,034 $ 87,797 $ 91,935 $ 36,281 $ 414,360 

0'> 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 

Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Balance Sbeets 

No,·ember 30, 2005 

Assets 

Cash 
Investments. at cost 

Receivables: 

Taxes (net of allowance for 

estimated uncollectibles) 

Accounts 

Prepaid expenses 
Due from other funds 

Due from other governments 

Inventory, at cost 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Vouchers payable 

Due to other funds 

Deferred revenue 

Compensated absences 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance~ reserved 

Fund balance. unreserved 

Total fund balance (deficit) 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Court 

Document 

Storage 

$ 587,766 
377,415 

10,015 

1,458 

20 

$ 976,674 

$ 9,714 

9,714 

1,458 

965,502 

966,960 

$ 976,674 

Probation 

Law Service 

Library Fee 

$ 4,467 $ 174,745 

43,371 107,636 

5,221 6,745 

$ 53,059 $ 289,126 

$ $ 2,259 

2,259 

53,059 286,867 

53,059 286,867 

$ 53,059 $ 289,126 

Nonmajor Funds 

Forfeited Gang Violence Driver 
Funds ·State's Victims and Dispute Court Improvement 

Attorney Witness Resolution Automation Program 

$ 14,362 $ 27,681 $ 3.434 $ 179,467 $ (8,416) 
27,972 60,699 363) j 1 

591 441 10,216 12,000 

3,644 

$ 42,334 $ 88,971 $ 3,875 $ 556,438 $ 3,584 

$ 417 $ $ $ L299 $ 3,263 

417 1,299 3263 

3.644 
41,917 88,971 3,875 551.495 321 

41,917 88,971 3,875 555.139 321 

$ 42,334 s 88,971 $ 3,875 $ 556,438 $ 3,584 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Balance Sheets 
November 30, 2005 

Assets 

Cash 
Investments, at cost 
Receivables: 

Taxes (net of allowance for 
estimated uncollectibles) 

Accounts 

Prepaid expenses 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governments 
Inventory, at cost 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Vouchers payable 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 
Compensated absences 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance 4 resef\"·ed 

Fund balance· unreserved 

Total fund balance (deficit) 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Arrestee 

Medical 

$ 14.233 

864 

$ 15,097 

$ 12,755 

12,755 

2,342 

2,342 

$ 15,097 

County 
Garbage 

Health TipEing Fee 

$ 559,468 $ 89,600 
1,166,754 

405,330 
8,642 

70,950 22,440 
49,875 

$ 2,252,377 $ 120,682 

$ 5,968 $ 23,012 
26,101 

429,991 
107,641 

543,600 49,113 

26,915 
1,681,862 71,569 

1,708,777 71,569 

$ 2,252,377 $ 120,682 

Nonmajor Funds 

Forfeited Revolving County 
Veterans Funds 4 CDAP County Motor Fuel 

Assistance Sheriff Loans Highway Tax 

$ 36,969 $ 3,851 $ 534,514 $ 398,605 $ 53222 
413,651 523.181 1,779.781 646.155 

125,612 1,514,220 
130 142.434 

855 49.238 

40.501 141.182 
35,163 

$ 577,087 $ 3,981 $ 1,098,196 $ 3,870,203 s 889.797 

$ 12,505 $ $ 40,501 $ 107,475 s 145,522 
20 

121,461 1,472,717 
1,147 30,759 359 

135,133 40,501 1,610,951 145,881 

855 35,163 49,238 

441,099 3,981 1,057,695 2,224,089 694,678 

441,954 3,981 1.057.695 2,259,252 743,916 

$ 577,087 $ 3,981 $ 1,098,196 $ 3,870,203 $ 889,797 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 

Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Balance Sheets 
November 30,2005 

Assets 

Cash 
Investments, at cost 

Receivables: 
Taxes (net of allowance for 

estimated uncollectibles) 

Accounts 

Prepaid expenses 

Due from other funds 

Due from other governments 

Inventory, at cost 

Total a"sets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Liabilities 

Vouchers payable 

Due to other funds 

Deferred revenue 

Compensated absences 

T otalliabilities 

Fund balance- reserved 

Fund balance - unreserved 

Total fund balance (deficit) 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

Matching 

Tax 

$ 152,355 

3,689,536 

764,702 

191,815 

$ 4,798,408 

$ 51,681 

743,951 

795,632 

4,002,776 

4,002,776 

$ 4,798,408 

Nonmajor Funds 

Geographical 

County To'\VD.Ship Information 

Bridge Bridge ~stem 

$ 12,142 $ 30,035 $ 136,021 

2,049,301 105,163 

764,703 

5,157 

1,700 

$ 2,826,146 $ 30,035 $ 248,041 

$ 149,036 $ $ 19,437 

743,951 

892,987 19,437 

1,700 

1,933,159 30,035 226,904 

1,933,159 30,035 228,604 

$ 2,826,146 $ 30,035 $ 248,041 

Total 
Marriage \V1A Nonmajor 

Fund Grants Funds Total 

$ 3,874 $ 14,340 $ 3,300,955 $ 5,993.599 
1 L757,493 15_496.938 

3,574,567 8,868,826 
332,394 822,969 889.349 

30,067 99,215 641.77.3 

218 2,828 

275,073 275.073 
85.038 85,038 

$ 3,874 $ 376,801 $ 19,915,528 $ 32,253.424 

$ $ 317,035 $ 955,920 $ 1.315,768 

26,121 263!9 
57,603 3,569,674 8.716.595 

2,163 142,069 205,746 

376,801 4,693,784 10,264,428 

30,067 161,293 703,851 

3,874 (30,067) 15,060,451 21,285,145 

3,874 15,221,744 21,988,996 

$ 3,874 $ 376,801 $ 19,915,528 s 32,253,424 



Kankakee County, Illinois 
Major and Nonmajor Special Re\'enue Funds 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended November 30, 2005 

Major Funds Nonm~or Funds 
County County Court 

Tort Recorder Clerk Treasurer Treasurer's Subrccipient Security 
Liability Pension Comruter Computer Computer Interest Grants Fee 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 1,944,581 $ 2,951,358 $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental 7,847 87,087 384,147 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and fees 127,107 21,236 18,383 15,670 303,315 
Interest on investments 46,769 89,760 1,391 1,250 1,274 1,429 7,139 
Miscellaneous 30,225 7,336 

Total revenues 2,029,422 3,128,205 128,498 22,486 26,993 17,099 ~147 3IOA54 

Expenditures: 
General government 2,164,690 3,587,753 101,330 27,207 9,057 

Judiciary and court related 

Public safety 223,522 225,637 

Public health and welfare 
Transportation 160,625 

Economic development 
Capital outlay 22,209 1,082 33,002 

Debt service principal 8,341 

Debt service interest 431 

Total expenditures 2,164,690 3,587,753 !32,311 27,207 10,139 384,147 258,639 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures (135,268) (459,548) (3,8!3) (4,721) 16,854 17,099 51,815 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers out 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures and other fmancing 

sources (uses) (135,268) (459,548) (3,813) (4,721) 16,854 17,099 51,815 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,679,990 4,682,078 109,784 47,545 70,943 74,836 356,359 

0"1 Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 2,544,722 $ 4,222,530 $ I 05,971 $ 42,824 $ 87,797 $ 91,935 $ $ 408,174 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 

For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Nonmajor Funds 
Court Probation Forfeited Gang Violence Driver 

Document Law Service Funds ·State's Victims and Dispute Court Improvement 
Storage Library Fee Attorney Witness Resolution Automation Program 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental 6,339 
Licenses and permits 
Fines and fees 126,437 58,826 105,367 8,1 II 4,915 127,457 60,920 
Interest on investments 16,907 1,392 3,786 887 1,882 13.800 8 
Miscellaneous 251 

Total revenues 143,344 60,469 109,153 7,226 9,993 4,915 141,257 60,928 

Expenditures: 
General government 
Judiciary· and court related 35,674 90,371 4,527 3,151 4,800 49,714 60,993 

Public safety 
Public health and welfare 

Transportation 
Economic development 

Capital outlay 29,614 14,285 1,467 186,074 

Debt service principal 
Debt service interest 

----

Total expenditures 65,288 90,371 18,812 4,618 4,800 235,788 60,993 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 78,056 (29,902) 90,341 2,608 9,993 115 (94,531) (65) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

ex-penditures and other financing 
sources (uses) 78.056 (29,902) 90,341 2,608 9,993 115 (94,531) (65) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 888,904 82,961 196,526 39,309 78,978 3,760 649,670 386 

0'> Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 966,960 $ 53,059 $ 286,867 $ 41,917 $ 88,971 $ 3,875 $ 555,139 $ 321 

0'> 



Kankakee County, Illinois 
Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Statements of Re'\-·enues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Nonmajor Funds 
County Forfeited Revolving County 

Arrestee Garbage Veterans Funds M CDAP County Motor Fuel 
Medical Health Tipping Fee Assistance Sheriff Loans Highway Tax 

Revenues: 

Property taxes $ $ 372,367 $ $ 137,918 $ $ $ L379J34 s 
Intergovernmental 2,033,662 44,034 130 112,425 1,931,905 
Licenses and permits 207,608 
Fines and fees 12.712 230.491 1!0,!56 612,556 
Interest on investments 51 38,903 1,220 11,277 21 22,813 43,768 23,582 
Miscellaneous 23,154 6,448 7,310 6,883 49,36! 

Total revenues 12,763 2,906,185 16!,858 156,505 !51 142,121 2,084,819 !,955.487 

Expenditures: 
General government 253,459 

Judiciary and court related 
Public safety 
Public health and welfare 2,665,578 237,499 112,425 

Transportation 1,505,677 2,005,522 

Economic development 2,351 

Capital outlay 69,644 2,489 470,872 

Debt service principal 52,254 

Debt service interest 114,066 

Total expenditures 2,901,542 255,948 237.499 114,776 1,976,549 2,005,522 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 12.763 4,643 (94,090) (80,994) !51 27,345 !08,270 (50,035) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers out (12,755) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) (12,755) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures and other financing 

sources (uses) 8 4,643 (94.090) (80.994) !51 27,345 108,270 (50,035) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,334 1,704,134 165,659 522,948 3,830 1,030,350 2,150,982 793,951 

m Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 2,342 $ 1,708,777 $ 71,569 $ 44!,954 $ 3,981 $1,057,695 $ 2,259,252 $ 743,9!6 
, 



Kankakee County, Illinois 
Major and Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Nonmajor Funds 
Geographical Total 

Matching County Tov.nship Information Marriage WIA Nonmajor 

Tax Bridge Bridge ~stem Fund Grants Funds Total 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 689,573 $ 689,574 $ $ s $ $ 3,268,566 s 8,164,505 

Intergovernmental 191,815 356,805 114,299 2,840,067 8,015,628 8,110,562 

Licenses and permits 207,608 207,608 

Fines and fees 231,228 2,420 2,177,307 2,177,307 

Interest on investments I 06,478 63,888 600 3,913 18 74 367,751 504,280 

Miscellaneous 66,550 167,293 197,518 
Total revenues 987,866 1,110,267 1]4,899 301,691 2,438 2,840,141 14,204,153 ___1,2,361, 780 

Expenditures: 
General government 238,360 629,413 6,381 ,856 

Judiciary and court related 3,136 252,366 252,366 

Public safety 449,159 449,159 

Public health and welfare 3,015,502 3,015,502 

Transportation 568,732 58,888 1!5,734 4,415,178 4,415,178 

Economic development 2,821,145 2,823,496 2,823,496 

Capital outlay 191,815 1,252,711 44,696 18,996 2,338,956 2,338,956 

Debt service principal 60,595 60,595 

Debt service interest 114,497 114,497 

Total expenditures 760,547 1,31!,599 1!5,734 283,056 3,136 2,840,141 14,099,162 19,851,605 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 227,319 (201,332) (835) 18,635 (698) 104,991 (489,825) 

Other fmancing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers out (12,755) (12,755) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) (12,755) (12, 755) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

expenditures and other financing 

sources (uses) 227,319 (201,332) (835) 18,635 (698) 92236 (502,580) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 3,775,457 2,134,491 30,870 209,969 4,572 15,129,508 22,49!,576 

0"1 Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 4,002,776 $ 1,933,159 $ 30,035 $ 228,604 $ 3,874 $ $15,221,744 $21,988,996 

00 



Kankakee County, Illinois 
Juvenile Detention Debt Service Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Revenues: 
Property taxes 
Interest on investments 

Total revenue 

Expenditures: 
Other services and charges 
Debt service principal 
Debt service interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures and other sources (uses) 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

Original 
and Final 
Budget 

$ 525,051 
1,500 

526,551 

277,114 
100,000 
144,475 

52!,589 

4,962 

$ 4,962 

Over 
(Under) 

Actual Budget 

$ 234,480 $ (290,571) 
1,787 287 

236,267 (290,284) 

284,367 7,253 
101,900 1,900 

135,322 (9,153) 

521,589 

(285,322) (290,284) 

265,000 265,000 

(20,322) $ (25,284) 

60,756 

$ 40,434 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 
Fiduciary Funds- Agency Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 
November 30, 2005 

Assets 

Cash 

Investments. at cost 
Receivables 

Accounts 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Vouchers payable 
Due to other governments 
Due to others 

Totai liabilities 

Back 
Tax 

$ 552.289 

$ 552,289 

$ 4,640 
547.649 

$ 552,289 

Riverside 
Country Arrowhead Drainage 

Estates S.A Hills S.A Districts 

$ 9,!40 $ 8.802 $ 218,520 
341.814 

41,534 948 

$ 50,674 $ 9,750 $ 560,334 

s $ $ 5,070 

50,674 9,750 555,264 

$ 50,674 $ 9,750 $ 560,334 

Sheriff Tax 
Civil Inheritance Condemnation Refund 

Collector Process Tax Account Account 

$ 3,783,800 $ 13,504 $ 14.243 $ 14.270 $ 2.352 
33.704 

428,761 -

$ 4,212,561 $ !3,504 $ 14,243 $ 47,974 $ 2.352 
= 

$ $ $ $ $ 
4,212,561 

13,504 14,243 47.974 ____3::352 

$ 4,212,561 $ 13,504 $ 14,243 $ 47,974 $ 2,352 



Kankakee County, Illinois 
Fiduciary Funds -Agency Funds 
Combining Balance Sheet 
November 30, 2005 

Unclaimed Sheriff 
Legacies Sheriff Sale Sheriff Circuit County 

and Bonds Seizure Account Commissary Clerk Clerk Total 
Assets 

Cash $ 84.660 $ 8,675 $ 51,522 $ 100,800 $ 1,652,125 $ 448,384 $ 6,963,086 
Investments, at cost 27.646 500,000 903,164 
Receivables 

Accounts 471,243 

Total assets $ 112,306 $ 8,675 $ 51,522 $ 100,800 $ 2,152,125 $ 448.384 $ 8,337,493 

Liabilities 

Vouchers payable $ $ $ $ $ $ s 9,710 
Due to other governments 4,760,210 
Due to others 112.306 8,675 51,522 100,800 2,152,125 448,384 3,567,573 -
Total liabilities $ 112,306 $ 8,675 $ 51,522 $ 100,800 $ 2,152,125 $ 448,384 $ 8,337,493 

__, 



Kanl<.ai{CC County, Illinois 
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities- Agency Funds 
For the Year Ended November 30,2005 

Beginning 

of Year 

Back Tax $ 535,702 
Riverside Country Estates Special Assessment 103,423 
Arrowhead Hill Special Assessment 9,228 
Drainage Districts 529,448 
Collector 4,857,383 
Sheriff Civil Process 9,589 
Inheritance Tax 16,916 
Condemnation Account 48,093 
Tax Ref1wd Account 2,324 
Legacies 88,313 
Sheriff Seizure 8,938 
Sheriff Sale Account 147,806 
Sheriff Commissary 92,035 
Circuit Clerk 1,987,627 
County Clerk 917,240 

Total $ 9,354,065 

End 
Additions Reductions of Year 

$ 554,770 $ 538,183 $ 552,289 

44,901 97,650 50,674 

1,528 1,006 9,750 
109,419 78,533 560,334 

115,129,285 115,774,107 4,212,561 
190,40 I 186,486 13,504 

2,522,994 2,525,667 14,243 
258,894 259,013 47,974 

28 2,352 
24,032 39 112,306 

57 320 8,675 
763,222 859,506 51,522 

488,244 479,479 I 00,800 

10,134,447 9,969,949 2,152,125 

3,362,523 3,831,379 448,384 

$133,584,745 $134,601,317 $ 8,337,493 
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Kankakee County, Illinois 

Assessed Valuations, Rates and Extensions 

For the tax levy years 1996 through 2005 

Extension year 

Assessed valuation, net of special 
districts and general abatements 

Tax rates: 

General corporate 

IMRF 
County Health 

Tort Liability 

County Highway 

Social Security 

Veterans 
Highv.>ay matching 

Joint Bridge 
Public Building Commission 

Extension Education 

Total ta.x rates 

Tax extensions: 

,_, 
w 

General corporate 
IMRF 
Public health 

Liability· insurance 

Count)• high,.,.·ay 

Social security 

Veterans 

Highway matching 

County bridge 
Public Building Commission 

Extension Education 

Total tax extensions 

2005 

$1,518,196,140 

$ 0.237 

0.112 

0.026 
0.134 

0.098 

0.091 

0.009 

0.049 

0.049 
0.016 

0.021 

5 0.842 

5 3,598.125 
1.700.380 

394,731 

2,034,383 

i,487,832 
1,381,558 

136,638 
743,916 

743,916 

242,911 

318,821 

$ 12,783,211 

2004 2003 2002 

$1,379,219,189 $1,354,612,444 $1,324,721,431 

$ 0.250 $ 0.250 $ 0.250 
0.118 0.115 0.113 
0.027 0.025 0.025 
0.141 0.129 0.127 
0.100 0.100 0.100 
0.096 0.095 0.092 
0.010 0.009 0.009 
0.050 0.050 0.050 
0.050 0.050 0.050 
0.017 0.037 0.036 
0.022 0.021 0.020 

5 0.881 $ 0.881 $ 0.872 

5 3,448,048 $ 3,386,531 $ 3,311,804 
1.627,479 1,557,804 1,496,935 

372,389 338,653 331,180 

1,944,699 !,747,450 1,682,396 

1.379,219 1,354,612 1,324,721 
1,324,050 1,286,882 1,218,744 

137,922 121,915 1!9,225 
689,6!0 677,306 662,361 

689,610 677,306 662,361 

234,467 501,207 476,900 

303,428 284,469 264,944 

$ 12,150,921 $ 11,934,135 $ 11,551,571 

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 

$1,259,599,751 $1,192,275,916 $1,120,355,538 $1,059.065,406 $ 9i0.558.723 ~753.503 

$ 0.250 5 0.250 $ 0.250 $ 0.250 $ 0.250 $ 0.250 
0.114 0.115 0.106 0.1!4 0.114 0.113 
0025 0.025 0.027 0.025 0.026 0.030 
0.120 0.121 0.112 0.121 0 I 18 0.117 
0.100 0.100 0.100 0.094 0.100 0 100 
0.094 0.094 0.091 0.094 0.095 0.093 
0.016 0018 0.018 O.OiS 0.018 0.020 
0.050 0.050 0.050 0.048 0.050 0.050 
0.050 0.050 0.050 0.048 0.050 0.050 
0.038 0.038 0.039 0.04! 0.041 0.043 

0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020 0.020 

$ 0.&77 s 0.88! $ 0.863 $ 0.873 $ 0.882 s 0.836 

5 3,148,999 $ 2,980,690 $ 2,800,889 s 2,647,664 s 2.426.397 s 2.319_384 

1.435.944 1.371,117 L187.577 I .207.335 l, l 06_437 L048,361 

314,900 298,069 302,496 264,766 252_345 278)26 
1,511,520 1,442,654 !,254,798 1,28!,469 Ll45,259 1 ,085_472 

1,259,600 1,192,276 U20,356 995,521 970_559 927)54 
1,184,024 1,120,739 1,019,524 995,521 922.031 862,8!1 

201,536 214,610 201.664 190,632 174}01 185.551 

629,800 596,138 560,178 508,351 485.279 463.877 

629,800 596,138 560,178 508,351 485,279 463,877 

478,648 453,065 436.939 434,217 397,929 393,934 

25!,920 238,455 224,071 211,813 194,!12 185.551 

$ 11,046,691 $ 10,503,951 $ 9,668,670 $ 9,245,640 $ 8.560.328 $ 8,219.898 


